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CORPORATE INFORMATION ASI&#}

Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong

Registered Office

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,

Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited
Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA Tower,
183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong

Internet Websites

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group

http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com Club
Hong Kong
http://www.haomama.com
Mainland China

http://www.haomama.com.cn

Detergent Business
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Business

http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Business
http://www.hkflourmills.com

Lam Soon e-Bidding
http://ebidding.lamsoon.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BAF 1=
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Equity Attributable to Shareholders (HK$ million)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BB E

Consolidated Results

HEEE
Year ended 30 June
BESA=+HILEE

(HK$ million) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(BEEET) b b la TRTAF —TEN\F ZTTEF ZTEREF
Continuing operations {HEE& £
Turnover E=EX 2,193 2,072 2,094 1,569 1,507
GP% ER= 20% 20% 16% 19% 20%
Profit before taxation BB ADRER 143 97 112 93 72
Taxation (charges)/credit B{IB (X H) /WA (21) (18) (11) 9 (7)
Profit for the year from TEEFEBELE

continuing operations EBEENRR 122 79 101 102 65
Discontinued operation 2R IE4E& 32
Profit for the year froma ZAREEDKRILEE

discontinued operation & E 4 HEF - — 6 8 46
Net gain on disposal of a HEBRIELE

discontinued operation  F%&EF| - — 9 - —
Profit for the year IR B F 122 79 116 110 11
Non-controlling interests  JEiZIR#ER - — 2 = (8)
Profit attributable to  AAT]

shareholders of the IR AE{

Company =¥ 122 79 118 110 1083
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BB E

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

GEEERER
At 30 June
~A=+H
(HK$ million) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(B EET) =t Lo TERAFE —FENF —EELF —EEREF
Total assets BEE 1,812 1,682 1,738 1,712 1,734
Total liabilities HEaE (413) (375) (466) (514) (623)
Non-controlling
interests FEfEIR eSS (11) (11) (a7) (86) (89)
Equity attributable to AAT]
shareholders of the RRRE(G
Company s 1,388 1,296 1,255 1,112 1,026

Key Financial Indicators

FEMBIEE

Year ended 30 June

BEAA=T+HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
= S SN CETAE CTR\F —BTLFE -BTAF
Earnings per share (HK$) SREF (&) 0.50 0.32 0.49 0.45 0.42
Dividend per share (HK$) SRERE (B T) 0.16 015 0.15 014 0.13
Equity-debt ratio BEAREELE 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE=ES I Fig&=

| am pleased to present this annual report for the financial year
ended 30 June 2010 wherein the Group has achieved significant
improvement in performance and expanded its business base

further in China.

Overview

The initial global economic recovery seen in our first half
was stymied by subsequent worries over its sustainability
as ensuing macro-economic data were not convincing.
Consequently, market conditions turned uncertain resulting
in significant volatility in commodity prices. This put pressure
on our production cost in China which was then facing, at the
same time, inflationary pressure from rising cost of energy,
transportation and labour. On the other hand, the Chinese
government undertook policies to boost domestic consumption
to prime the economy. This helped to support our China flour,
edible oil and detergent businesses to face the challenging
environment. Moreover, we benefited from our positioning in
recent years in the premium food segment to meet increasing
demand for better quality, higher-priced consumer products as
the standard of living in China improves.

Against this difficult operating environment, low margin
operators would have a hard time. Under the circumstance,
however, the Group was able to make considerable higher
profits compared to last year while turnover experienced only a
small increase. This shift of our product mix towards the higher
margin, better quality premium segment has proven timely to
produce a stronger bottom line.

During the year, we had doubled our total flour production
capacity in China to 1.2 million metric tons a year with the newly
converted mill which we had acquired in Jiangsu and our self-
built mill in Shandong. This makes us one of the top flour milling
companies in China and gives us a solid foundation for our
expansion into the Eastern and Northern China markets.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EE=ES I Fig&=

Financial Results

The Group’s net profit to shareholders increased by 56% to
HK$122 million while turnover rose by 6% to HK$2,193 million.
Basic earnings were HK$0.50 per share.

The directors will be recommending a final dividend of HK$0.10
per share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.06 per share already paid,
the total dividend for the year will amount to HK$0.16 per share
as compared to the HK$0.15 total dividend per share for the
previous year.

We continued to maintain strict financial discipline which
is particularly important during this period of economic
uncertainty. We are in a strong financial position with net cash
of HK$503 million at 30 June 2010 after settlement of our
investment costs in new production capacity.

Business Review

The past year was another successful year for Lam Soon as
we stepped up our efforts in expanding from Hong Kong and
Southern China from which we have built a strong foothold over
the last 50 years. However, we are facing stiff price competition
as we expand into other regions in China. Sales in Mainland
China now account for close to 80% of our revenue. We have
adopted a prudent approach in growing our businesses -
balancing market share and profitability — by focusing on the
high-margin premium products.

The Group’s premium brands namely Knife and Red Lantern
edible oils, Golden Statue bakery flour and American Roses
soft flour, continued to record satisfactory growth driven by
effective brand promotions and product innovations. Our Knife
Brand edible oil products added to their collections of awards
by winning, for the 11th consecutive year, Reader’s Digest’s
“Trusted Brand Gold Prize”, and Hong Kong Top Brand Ten Year
Achievement Award.

In May 2010, we successfully registered a national patent in

Mainland China for our new “4:1” formula based on a 4 part
Omega 6 and 1 part Omega 3 fatty acid ratio for health benefits
which is used in our Red Lantern edible oil. This will elevate the
market position of our already well-known Red Lantern brand in
Southern China into the high quality health food category.
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Business Review (continued)

Our adherence to vigorous product safety standards has won
praise not only from the private sector but also from public
bodies. In March 2010, our flourmill in Jiangsu was named
“Model enterprise for reliable grain and edible oil manufacturing”
(B BShREI{2%) by China National Association of Grain
Sector (FEEBERITEMS). In addition, both our flour and
edible oil subsidiaries in Shekou were respectively named “Top
500 Enterprises” and “Top 100 Manufacturers” in Guangdong
Province by Guangdong Provincial Enterprises Confederation
and Guangdong Provincial Association of Entrepreneurs.

Our detergent business has continued to do well with a big
improvement in operating profit this year. Active promotion

of our new improved AXE and Labour brand detergents has

succeeded to attract more consumers to switch to our higher

quality products. In addition, our Procleanic detergent brand

for commercial and industrial customers launched only in 2008

has made its impact in that sector and was contracted as a key
1. supplier of detergent for Expo 2010 Shanghai.

Outlook

We anticipate the coming year will remain testing as
uncertainties are expected to continue in the global economy.
Manufacturers will face rising agricultural commodity prices,

rising production costs and fierce price competition in China.
All these will pressurise profit margins and could result in

=

consolidation of the respective industries in China. We see
opportunities for mergers and acquisitions under such a
scenario.

Next year we celebrate Lam Soon’s 50th anniversary in Hong

Kong and we look forward to our next phase of expansion into

China into the 21st Century. We had already begun with our

% current Five Year Plan to build a larger sales and distribution
‘ platform in all major cities in China. We recognize the coming

year will be challenging but we remain undaunted and will be

z vigilant to meet the changing market conditions. Our expansion
will be in tandem with the growth of the China economy.
With expert technical know-how, research and development

capability, a strong financial position and a high calibre
professional management team, | am confident that Lam Soon

will grow into a premier quality food and household product
company in China.
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Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow
directors for their counsel and support during the year. To our
management and staff, | would like to express my appreciation
for their great team spirit in working together towards the growth
of our businesses, and their thinking and planning to take our
company to the next level. On behalf of the Board, | would like
to thank also our customers, bankers and shareholders for
their trust and support as we strengthen and grow the Group’s
presence in the vitally important China market.

KWEK Leng Hai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 August 2010
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS B4 %

Corporate Event £E;EE)

Corporate £[E

REBHEZF T AERIT2000FEEFETIRES ]
December 2009 2009 12 A

Food Segment B @m%5EB

0 B 2010 R ERf2 51T

3 October 2010 2010%1083H

BERFEEER ISR RE SRV EEST B OHEERNEREE
ABERLEBE010RER MR
12 August 2010 2010%E8H12H

MR BREFTEBGS SRR EERNRESEIARERER
BEEXRMENEE
11 May 2010 2010F5H11H

[T — ARBEARE | RE2ESET
December 2009 — February 2010 20095128 - 2010524

Flour Flour Division — Key Distributors Meeting of Northern China 2010-2011
mH held at Shandong, Qingzhou

RO HELREHEFHEARE2010-201 1R EMILRET
24 July 2010 2010%F7H24H
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Flour division participated in the event of “Cheung Chau Bun Festival” at
Cheung Chau, HKSAR

HHHSEAEBRMNETH [RNATERE] BE

May 2010 2010558
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Flour Flour division sponsored the Chinese Baking Competition of
L) China at Guangzhou
MM EBAEMNBRT 2R EMERE
20-21 May 2010 2010%5H20-21H

“The 13th China International Trade Fair for Bakery and Confectionery” held in Shanghai
REBEGTIF+=ZREPEEREERES
12 May 2010 2010%F5H12H

“Golden Statue Cup” National Baking Competition
[£B7F] ZEMFRE
4-6 November 2009 20094 11H4-6H

Equipment Launching Ceremony of Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Company Limited
mMIE (LK) BRmERARRGRBIRE
22 October 2009 20094 10H22H

Set up of Jiangsu Lam Soon Food
H ﬂ-‘l"{.- e TR T . 1
T W

Company Limited
BRI MEIERBERAR
28 July 2009 2009%7H28H

Detergent Segment ;&% H & 5 &8

FHEESHENRINBTZ EEEEEERBERN REERTE
23-25 April 2010 2010% 4 B 23-25H

HIE(FB)BRLT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Annual team building activities at Baiyun Hill, Guangzhou |
REMNBEILET ZEIEEE 2009 FEMMEF INERCEE
October 2009 20094 10 B
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Community Care #t &A%

Fund raising event of “ T EEFIBHIZREZRE" held at East Point City,
Hong Kong for Hong Kong Council of Early Childhood Education and

Services
[JEFESSRERE RN BEREBNBITABTBNRHARRE
GEEX

8 November 2009 20094 11 A8 H

Sponsored Programmes B 2 G E

* Hong Kong Storytelling Competition (2010) organized by The e BBNEHZEIMRNEBRERS
Boys’ & Girls’ Clubs Association of Hong Kong JEELEE 2010

o Flag Selling for fund raising organized by The Boys’ & Girls’ o BEBNEHZECEEEIED

Clubs Association of Hong Kong

Z
EHBIN 7 #Hae

Sponsorship to The Better Hong Kong Foundation
B EBAXREF ES

The Better Hong Kong

Foundation
’ 2 '
N

Sponsored Knife products for the programme of [ E A 2B EEE ] | ssstrresnres
BYIBEERTEERRBAEENIED Teoisataia

Sponsored Knife products for the programme of [ A ZEfEZ 2009 | held by Hong Kong Movie Star Sports
Association Charities Limited

BYIEERTEALAAERAGE (RE)BREESER 2 OB EX 2009 /ES

The Community Chest of Hong Kong - Walk for
Millions

FELARE - BARTT

Participated in the Walk for Millions organised by The
Community Chest of Hong Kong for many years.
BREFFHLEZHEEBARTBPNBERIT
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Honour and Awards 258 Edi§1H

LSHK “Caring Company Award 2007-2010” by The Hong Kong Council of
MIREE Social Service

EEBHEREEESERE [HARAREIZE2007-2010] FZ&Fik
March 2010 201043 A

Oil Division |

JHAEED

Knife Good Mother Reinforcement Campaign was granted as “CAPITAL x CAPITAL
WEEKLY Outstanding Strategic Performance Awards”

MR RIFIE T WBARBREF | SETEE(EREFIR(ERSAEE G
R BRI AKEE |
June 2010 2010% 6 A

Lam Soon Edible Oil Formula obtains its First National Patent 4:1 Oil Formula in “Red Lantern” Product
MIERAMAEE 41 B ERRESER
May 2010 2010%5 B

TVB Weekly Mothers’ Best Choice Awards “KNIFE brand — 2010 Mothers’
Favourite Edible Oil”

FHREEME 2010 (TVB ATIKBHREERH — &)
May 2010 201045 A

“KNIFE” was nominated by China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association
(Overseas) as Granted Brand in Consumer’s Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands 2011

[T JERECEN CEEBHESTEA(EBEE) 2011 BEABRE
April 2010 201044 A

“Knife” awarded the Hong Kong and Asia’s “Trusted Brand Gold Prize” by Reader’s Digest
[T EEE BRI EERMEI2010FBBRDABER
April 2010 20105 4 8

“Knife” was awarded Hong Kong Top Brand Ten Year Achievement Award by
The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and Hong Kong Brand

Development Council jointly

[T R EEBPERAH S REENEERRB SRR BB B TR
January 2010 201051 A

“Knife” was awarded the Most Potential Corporate Brand in the Hong Kong
Corporate Branding Award 2009 held by Ming Pao

[T ERASRE M B BB EMBERE 2000 |NWHEEELEREE
December 2009 2009 & 12 A

HIE(ER)BRLTF a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS EE4E

Honour and Awards 252 B8 TH

Detergent “AXE” was nominated by China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association (Overseas)
ARR R as Granted Brand in Consumer’s Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands 2011

[FEIE EPECEMN CEEEBHETEA(EBRE) 2011 BEABRE
April 2010 20104 4 B m

Flour Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited has been recognised as “Model Enterprise for Reliable
R Grain & Edible Oil Manufacturing in Jintan City” in 2009 by the China National Association of
Grain Sector
IHMIERREBRATETEERMGEEESET 2000 FEI OB HEERELHE | 48
March 2010 201043 A

e e
Oil & Flour Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, FR PECLEL L L
HAE R Limited and Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills FERANTENSRE % E‘_‘i‘J‘“"ﬂ
M Company Limited both earn the names of - i

“Top 500 Enterprises in Guangdong 2010” and

“Top 100 Manufacturers in Guangdong 2010”
FYFEIEHEERR AR REOEIEEDERA R GEC QsC

EEr010FERELERTR M | T e =t

i - -
(2010 R A Sl R E R e RRERREALS 1" i e SO0

July 2010 20107 A | s Hge

“Web Care Award” by Internet Professional Association

HiAEE AR HERERAL R
e — e L L

www.lamsoon.com SR RE BRI
www.haomama.com g =R G2 =R HEPE AR IR
www.hkflourmills.com SR G Fiik Fiigd AR
www.haomama.com.cn * * TR TR BE-ME
www.lamsoonoil.com SR * G2 R *
www.love2clean.com SR * R R 2% *

* Not enrolled for the year Wt &R SER
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Quality Certification &R 525

EMNEIEERZRRERAE

Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited

BRENIFUEESR o
.- ISO 9001:2008 Certification
et | 1S0 9001:2008 HHEEE Ai2E
e s s Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited STEEIEER AR A A
T | Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited TEmEIERMAAERA
=~ === | |am Soon (Shandong) Food Company Limited ME(LR)BERERATR
o }Ei Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, Limited wIYIREIE B AR A T
g Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited 1O IEEEH E R A F
E®s
FESRLLAE

BEMNmEIEEZRmERAT
IHEIERRERATF
RYIFEIEHERRAT
e O EIEEH AR D E

Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Co., Ltd

Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited

7\
pan ISO 22000:2005 Certificate in Food Safety Management System
= ISO 22000:2005 R =2 EEERDE
S~ e Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited IHEMIERERERAR
D R Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Company Limited BE(LR)ERERAR
R Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Co., Ltd. wYIFIE R RE B BR A |
sasenen Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited te O IEEEH B R AT
gl 4956
y o E——=

Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company Limited
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Company Limited
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, Limited
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills Company Limited
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China Environment Labelling Certification
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Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ¥75[oIEa

Operation Review

Both the Food and Detergent segments of the Group’s
operations performed well despite the challenging and
competitive conditions during the year. We have built a stronger
portfolio of branded premium products supported by more
innovative products and promotion programmes. We also
extended our distribution services in China to cover eastern and

northern regions.
Food Segment

Owing to reductions in commodity prices during the early
part of the financial year, we saw price cutting in the market
as competitors were trying to gain market share. The price
cut offset the increase in our sales volume, resulting only in a
modest revenue growth of 5% for the Food Segment. Operating
profit for the segment however increased by 9% to HK$134
million, thanks to our strategy to focus on premium brands and

improvements in productivity.

The Group continues to enjoy success in its Knife Brand
premium edible oils, a brand that has been on the market for
nearly 50 years. Well recognised by consumers in Hong Kong
and Southern China, the edible oils achieved double-digit sales
growth in Mainland China. With a new modern packaging, the
brand was re-launched in Hong Kong through the “No one is
better than mum, no one is better than Knife” (JAR & =215
7, tRRER TEY) media campaign, attracting very positive
response from consumers.

The Group was accredited the National Technology Patent
Certificate by the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC
for its 4:1 fatty acid ratio healthy formula, the first edible ail
product of the Group to be awarded a national technology
patent. The Group has first launched this formula in the China
market with our popular edible oil Red Lantern brand. The
launch was supported with a new bottle and packing design to

match with Red Lantern’s new health food image.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ¥75[oIEa

Operation Review (continued)

Food Segment (continued)

For our flour business expansion, the Group acquired a flour

mill in Jiangsu Province and completed construction of a new

flour mill in Shandong Province during the year under review.

These additional facilities put Lam Soon amongst the top-five

flour mill operators in China by increasing our wheat processing

capacity to 3,500 metric tons per day and significantly enhance

our capability to serve the local customers. In particular, our

Shandong plant is located in the heart of the high quality wheat

production areas and will enable the Group to produce world-

class, high quality products to customers of our specialised

products.

Turnover — Food Segment (HK$ million)

BEE —RROBMOEREET)

2,000
1,800
1,600
1,400
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200
0

1,790

2009

2010

EFEEOEE =)
BB (&)

HEMEBARIE  AEEREEFAYE
—RURNIEHE 2R - LERURLURE
EHBNERETRE SLEMERESAKEEE
BNESRAZESHI00 M BEEBE
MREABRENEED » WRUEEIRE S H
BAEMREBERM - W ILRENEH K
URBENELEBLENVHEILT  EAKE
MRATEHEN N FREUYARSEEHET
EREMEE -
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ¥75[OIEa

Operation Review (continueq)
Detergent Segment

The segment generated revenue of HK$304 million and profit
from operations of HK$46 million during the year, representing
year-on-year gains of 10% and 82% respectively. It is worth
noting that this achievement was mainly the result of active
promotion of our AXE and Labour brand products and
penetration into more supermarket chains, capturing market
opportunities as consumers are switching to higher quality
products.

Our professional products for commercial and industrial use
under our Procleanic brand launched in Hong Kong and Macau
in 2008 continues to be well received. A number of well-
established catering companies are now our customers. During
the year, Procleanic received a further recognition of its product
quality by winning a contract to become a key supplier of
detergent products for Expo 2010 Shanghai.

Riding on the success in the existing markets and product
portfolio, we will continue to introduce innovative products
to widen our distribution networks from Southern China to
other parts of the country, and looking for diversifications
opportunities with the ultimate goal of becoming a top hygiene

and consumer products provider in China.

Turnover — Detergent Segment (HK$ million)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %*¥:[IEaE

Financial Review
Group Results

The Group’s turnover increased by HK$121 million or 6%, to
HK$2,193 million for the year ended 30 June 2010. The Group
maintained its gross profit ratio at 20% despite of volatile
commodities prices.

During the year, the selling and distribution expenses grew
by HK$25 million or 12%, to HK$232 million. The increase
was primarily attributable to the marketing expenses and the
additional personnel for new market development outside
Southern China.

The Group’s profit before taxation improved by HK$46 million or
47%), to HK$143 million. In prior year, the profit before taxation
was weighed down by the mark-to-market loss on foreign

currency deposits which have since been significantly reduced.
Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2010, the Group had cash balance of HK$569
million (2009: HK$640 million). About 63% of these funds are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), 10% in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), 26% in United States dollars (“USD”), 1% in Macau
Pataca (“MOP”) respectively.

At 30 June 2010, the Group had HK$306 million committed
bank facilities (2009: HK$278 million) of which HK$65 million
(2009: HK$41 million) was utilized. All bank borrowings carry
interest at floating rates and are repayable within 1 year.

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities
at the corporate level. There are stringent controls over the
application of financial and hedging instruments which can
only be employed to manage and mitigate the exposure of
interest rate risk attributable to bank borrowings, the exposure
of foreign currency risk arising from trade and other receivables
denominated in foreign currencies, and the price risk of

commodities for trade purposes.

A ¥ EEE
e BT

AEBR-ZE-ZFANA=THLEEZE
¥ % - F+ 78 #121,000,000 T(6%) & 8 ¥
2,193,000,000t > R E T HEEYWEE TE
E o ANEEZERMEEFE20% °

REAEE HERSHEHERLABYE
25,000,000 7t (12%) £ 7 # 232,000,000 JT ©
FAXTEATSEEEARAMBERUIMN
EBHMIZHNAEETIRAX -

78 & B BB AT % R 2k & 78 ¥ 46,000,000 7T
(47%) 2 78 % 143,000,000 ¢ » £ F S BRE A
BHNZBHIIMNEERETEARBAAEREE
K@D o

RBEE KRB R

R-ZZE-—ZEXA=Z1+RH AEBEB
#£569,000,000t(= & T hL F: B ¥
640,000,000t ) B &%k EHF63% 2 AR
B 10% BB 26%2ET R1% 2B
ﬁé}o

R-ZZE-—ZEXA=Z1+RH AEBEB
#£306,000,000Tt(= & & fL F: B ¥
278,000,000 ) RTHEREESE  LEEBA
H 8 #65,000,000 T(ZEZFhF . B
41,000,000 T)WIEE - FTBERITERTAZ
BERENR—FRMEER-

FEERBRETREREREETD 8K
TTETANEAZIEERE  EUANEE
FBERITERAITENTRER - LIINEE
B/ B 5 B U AR 7R R HL At FE U BR KPR 9T 4 B9 b
ERR - REZEmAOERRRE -

HMIE(ERB)BRLTF H Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited






REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %3Ol

Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

As 30 June 2010, the inventory turnover days were 65 days
(2009: 40 days). In anticipation of limited supply of raw materials
in Mainland China, the Group decided to increase the level
of raw materials at the end of the year, and hence the rise in

turnover days.

The trade receivable turnover days improved to 21 days (2009:
24 days).

In view of the strong liquidity with a current ratio exceeding
two as well as the readily available banking facilities, the
management believes the Group has sufficient resources to fund
its daily operating activities, current and potential investment
opportunities.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. All the Group’s borrowings were

denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and deposits that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate. Details of the foreign currency exposure of the Group are

set out in note 5(d) to the financial statements.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested a total sum of HK$172
million on acquiring and building new plants, and on improving

production capacity.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in
note 34(a) to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

Bt F5EIRE )
RBELRBURR (&)

R-Z-—ZFXA=1+AH HFEAEHAGSAH
(ZEZNAE: 408) - ERFEH R EIREA BHE
FESR5R - RS IR TE 1 F RGN R AR E 17 K
¥ BRGFEREH LA -

ESRWNFAEHREZEE2IB(ZZEENEF:
24 B)MIRBREAKFE o
AEBNRBLEREMEREEANBRTER

FEHE BEEMRF AEEAZREREN
AEEE RERARNRERS -

S BE 2 B
FEEETBEAREREBYEER - BEHEAE

RBEAZEZEUARERBTEE - AEBE VR
TERRBIRARBERN -

AEEEENEERR  FTEASEELTN
e EMLUNEBITENEE - KBRERM
PTHERE R o HNE & B E D A B 75 3R R BT
E5(d) °

BRI

FR BRAER AEERBEREEARE
7B 172,000,000 TR = B #1:& 8 ©
ERABATHAREEEFINRBBERERWE
34(a) °

HABEK

HREBEZH BN BEREMEL5 -

HIE(ER)BRLTF E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited



HIE(FB8)BRLATF H Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS %f5blEA

Financial Review (continued)
Human Resources and Training

As at 30 June 2010, there were approximately 1,600 employees
in the Group. Annual increment and year-end performance
bonus mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s
remuneration policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals
for their contributions to the Group. The Company also operates
a share option scheme for granting of options to eligible
employees. During the year, no option was granted to any
director and other employees of the Group and there was no
outstanding option as at 30 June 2010.

Relation with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its

businesses.
Relation with Community

During the year, the Group continued to support a wide
spectrum of community services targeting the needy in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and beyond. The Group supported the
activities organised by The Better Hong Kong Foundation and
participated in the Community Chest Walk for Millions. The
Group sponsored The Boys’ and Girls’ Club Association of Hong
Kong, and International Conference on Brand Management
organized by Hong Kong Polytechnic University. The Group
was presented with the Caring Company 2009-2010 Award by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for fostering good

corporate citizenship in both public and private sectors.
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Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 57, Chairman of the Company since October 2006
and has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the
Chairman of Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate holding company of
the Company. He is the President, CEO of Guoco Group Limited
(“GGL"), a Hong Kong listed subsidiary of HLCM. He also
holds directorships in key listed subsidiaries and associated
companies of GGL including GuocolLand Limited and
Guocoleisure Limited, both listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited, and Hong Leong Bank Berhad listed
on Bursa Malaysia. He is also a director of Bank of Chengdu
Co., Ltd.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is the brother-
in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

Leung Wai Fung

Aged 54, Executive Director of the Company since July 2005.
Mr. Leung has been designated as the Group Managing Director
with effect from 1 September 2006.

Mr. Leung joined the Company in 1997 and had assumed the
positions of Group Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer of the Group’s Distribution Segment in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as Executive Director of the Board in June 2002.
Mr. Leung left the Company and assumed a senior management
position with a Hong Leong Group company in March 2004 and
rejoined the Company in July 2005.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
from Simon Fraser University and an Executive Master’s Degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from Fudan University
School of Management. He has over 20 years of experience
in the areas of business management, strategic planning and
development as well as acquisitions and mergers.

He had worked in Hong Kong and overseas with multinationals,
including The East Asiatic (EAC), British Petroleum (BP),
Inchcape Pacific, Hiram Walker-Allied Vintners in the U.S.A. and
Canada, and Hostess Frito-Lay (snack food division of Pepsi-
Cola) in Canada. Before joining the Company in 1997, Mr. Leung
was the General Manager of Guoco Investments (China) Limited.
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Whang Sun Tze

Ph.D.

Aged 66, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984,

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering.
He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kwong Chi, Clement

Aged 65, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 1993 and Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1975. He is the Chairman
of the Board Audit Committee and a member of the Board

Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is a solicitor by profession and was admitted to practice
both in Hong Kong and England in 1970.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 62, Non-Executive Director of the Company since

appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is an executive director of GGL and is the Managing
Director of GuocoCapital Limited and GuocoCommodities
Limited, wholly owned subsidiaries of GGL. Mr. Tan holds a
Bachelor of Science first class honours degree in engineering
from University of Surrey and a Master of Science degree in
management from Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
He had previously worked in Geneva in 1974 with the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development. He had also
served in the Singapore Civil Service as a Colombo Plan
Scholar 1975-1978 before coming to work in Hong Kong with
a financial services company and a major U.S. bank. Mr. Tan
has extensive experience in property investment, financial and

investment management services.
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Tsang Cho Tai

Aged 60, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Tsang is also a member
of Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsang was appointed as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1999 and re-designated as Non-
Executive Director in 2004.

Mr. Tsang is also the Chief Financial Officer of the GGL group.
Prior to that, he was an associate of an international firm of
accountants. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) as well as an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales.

Ding Wai Chuen

Aged 50, Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ding
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company in 2004 and re-designated as a Non-Executive
Director since September 2009. He also serves as an executive
director of GGL.

Mr. Ding is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the
HKICPA. Mr. Ding is currently a council member of the HKICPA.

Mr. Ding has over 25 years of experience as a professional
accountant with international firms of accountants in England
and in Hong Kong and with the HKICPA. In 2007, Mr. Ding was
appointed by the Hong Kong SAR Government as a member
of the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial
Reporting Council. Since 2002, Mr. Ding has been appointed
by the PRC Ministry of Finance as a member of the Advisory
Group of Foreign Experts for the development of PRC’s
Independent Auditing Standards. Since the beginning of 2007,
he has been involved, as an advisor to the HKICPA, in the joint
projects between HKICPA and PRC Ministry of Finance for the
comparison of Hong Kong and PRC accounting and auditing
standards. Mr. Ding is a member of Railway Objections Hearing
Panel.
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Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 61, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is a

member of the Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lo has over 28 years of experience in banking, finance and
investments. He worked for a number of well-known financial

institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director and members
of the audit and nomination committees of the Taiwan Fund Inc,
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

He also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-
executive director and the audit committee chairman of IDT
International Limited; independent non-executive director, the
audit committee chairman and members of the remuneration
and nomination committees of Playmates Holdings Limited;
independent non-executive director, audit committee chairman
and member of the remuneration committee of Tristate Holdings
Limited; and independent non-executive director and member

of the audit committee of Convenient Retail Asia Limited.
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Au Chee Ming

Aged 59, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in August 2009. He is a member

of the Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.
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HIE(F8)EBRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP
Code”), which is based on the principles set out in Appendix
14 (the “HKEx Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in light of
changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

The Company had complied throughout the financial year ended
30 June 2010 with the HKEx Code, save that non-executive
directors were not appointed for a specific term. However,
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of association
of the Company and the CGP Code. As such, the Company
considers that such provisions are sufficient to meet the intent
of the relevant provisions of the HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code

throughout the year.
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Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 47.

Board Meetings and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings were held. All directors

attended all four meetings.
Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. Decisions involving
financial statements, dividend policy, material contracts and
major investments and divestments are reviewed and subject
to approval by the Board. Other main roles of the Board are to
ensure that adequate internal control systems and management
information systems are in place, including being in compliance
with every aspect of the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value for
its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) for the
year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as
at the date of this report, the Company still considers that the
INEDs continue to be independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Directors’ Profile” on pages 33 to 37 of this
annual report.

Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD”)
are segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung
is the GMD of the Company.

The primary responsibility of the Chairman is to ensure effective
functioning of the Board, which focuses on the Group’s broad
strategic direction and macro oversight of the management.
The GMD is responsible for the management of the Company
in accordance with the strategies approved by the Board of
Directors.

Directors’ Remuneration
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”)

The principal role of the BRC is to make recommendations to
the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management, and to determine the specific
remuneration packages of the executive director and all senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The BRC would also consider factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The terms of reference of the BRC adopted by the
Board are available on the Company’s website (www.lamsoon.
com).

For the period from 1 July and up to 31 August 2009, the BRC
comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the Company
and the BRC), LO Kwong Chi, Clement and DING Wai Chuen.
Mr. DING Wai Chuen, formerly an INED and a BRC member,
was re-designated as a non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 1 September 2009 and thus ceased to be
a BRC member on even date. Mr. AU Chee Ming, an INED
since 26 August 2009, was appointed as a BRC member on 1
September 2009.
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Directors’ Remuneration (continved)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”) (continued)

During the year, two BRC meetings were held, Messrs. KWEK
Leng Hai, LO Kwong Chi, Clement and Mr. AU Chee Ming
attended all two meetings. At these meetings, the remuneration
packages of the executive director and senior management for

the year were reviewed.

Nomination of Directors

The Board is responsible for the selection and recommendation
of candidates for directorship of the Company. Reference would
be made to the skills, experience, professional integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidate, the Company’s needs
and other applicable statutory requirements. The Board would

also review the size, structure and composition of the Board.

During the year, the Board had approved the appointment of Mr.
AU Chee Ming as an INED of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year, the external auditors of the Group charged
approximately HK$995,000 for annual audit service and there
was no non-audit service rendered by the external auditors.

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

The BAC oversees the financial reporting processes and
assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. The BAC meets with the Company’s
external auditors and the internal auditors for their evaluations of
the internal control system. It also reviews interests in contracts
and connected transactions. The BAC reviews the financial
statements of the Company and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the auditor’s report thereon and
submits its views to the Board. The terms of reference of the
BAC are available on the Company’s website (www.lamsoon.
com).
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Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

(continued)

For the period from 1 July 2009 and up to 31 August 2009, the
BAC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Chairman
of the BAC), TSANG Cho Tai and DING Wai Chuen. Mr. DING
Wai Chuen, formerly an INED and a BAC member, was re-
designated as a non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 1 September 2009 and thus ceased to be a BAC
member on even date. Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony, an INED since
12 December 2008, was appointed as a BAC member on 1
September 2009.

During the year, four BAC meetings were held. Messrs. LO
Kwong Chi, Clement and TSANG Cho Tai attended all four
meetings. Mr. DING Wai Chuen attended one meeting, and Mr.
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony attended three meetings, held during their
respective terms of office.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BAC

during the year:

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s systems of internal control and enterprise risk

management;

— reviewed the consolidated financial statements and

results of the Group;
— reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

— reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting

policies;

— reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong
on the Company’s accounts;

— reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and

approved the external audit fee; and

— reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training

programmes.
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Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

(continued)

A statement by the external auditors on their reporting
responsibilities is set out on pages 61 to 62 of the annual

report.

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their

responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.

Internal Controls

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its

business activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
internal controls, has developed a risk management framework

for the Group to assist in:

= identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

— developing the necessary measures for managing these

risks; and

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy

of such measures.
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Internal Controls (continued)

The Board has entrusted the BAC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the risk management framework
of the Group. In discharging this responsibility, the BAC,
assisted by the Group Internal Audit Department:

= ensures that new and emerging risks relevant to the

Group are promptly identified by management;

— assesses the adequacy of action plans and control
systems developed to manage these risks; and

= monitors the implementation of the action plans and the

effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems.

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BAC.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or

against financial losses and fraud.

In the associated companies and jointly controlled companies,
the Board nominates representatives to sit as directors and
take a proactive stance in assessing the performance of the
entity with the goal of safeguarding the investment of the Group.
Where practical, the Group may request functional, financial and
operating information as well as assurance that such information
have been prepared in accordance with reporting standards and
have been derived from control environments acceptable to the
Group.

The Board, through the BAC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s internal control system and considers that it is
adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied that the Group
has fully complied with the provisions on internal controls as set
out in the CGP Code.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2010.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 163
to 167.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 163
to 167.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2010 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year
ended are set out in the financial statements on pages 63 to
162.

Dividends

The Directors will recommend to the shareholders for approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting a final dividend of
HK$0.10 per share. This, together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.06 per share paid on Tuesday, 30 March 2010, will
amount to a total dividend of HK$0.16 per share for the year
(2009: HK$0.15). Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final
dividend will be payable on Tuesday, 30 November 2010 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on Tuesday, 16 November 2010.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 11 November 2010 to Tuesday, 16 November 2010,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend and for
attending and voting at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, all transfers documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Share Registrars and Transfer Office — Hongkong Managers and
Secretaries Limited at Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA Tower, 183
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.
on Wednesday, 10 November 2010.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group amounted to
HK$500,000 during the year (2009: HK$500,000).

Share Capital

As set out in Note 31 to the financial statements, there were no
movements in share capital during the year.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note
17 to the financial statements.
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Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report

are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

LEUNG Wai Fung, Group Managing Director**
WHANG Sun Tze*

LO Kwong Chi, Clement*

TAN Lim Heng*

TSANG Cho Tai*

DING Wai Chuen* (Note 1)

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony”*

AU Chee Ming” (Note 2)

**  Executive director
*

Non-executive director

# Independent non-executive director

Notes:

1. Formerly an independent non-executive director and was re-
designated as a non-executive director on 1 September 2009.

2. Appointed on 26 August 2009.

In accordance with Article 78 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai, LEUNG Wai Fung and
DING Wai Chuen shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) with GuolLine Group Management Co. Limited
(“GGMC”) and GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) on 30 June 2008
for provision of services by GGMC or GOMC (the “Service
Providers”) to the Company and/or its subsidiaries, which
include, among other things, overview of businesses and
operations, investment management and financial management
disciplines, treasury and risk management, key managerial
recruitment and retention, productivity and quality programmes
and other operating practices and procedures as well as
planning and development of management information systems.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2011.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreement
comprise a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$50,000 (or
such other amount as may be agreed from time to time between
the Service Providers and the Company) and an annual fee
(the “Annual Fee”) equal to 3 per cent. of the annual profits
before tax of the Company and the subsidiaries as shown in the
audited profit and loss accounts of the individual companies for
the relevant financial year, subject to appropriate adjustments.
The total fee, being the sum of the Monthly Fee and the Annual
Fee, is subject to an annual cap of HK$13,000,000 (the “Annual
Cap”) for each of the three financial years ending 30 June 2011.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Master Services Agreement (continued)

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, and thus they are associates
of a connected person of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). HLCM is deemed to
be invested in shareholding in the Company. The transactions
under the Master Services Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement
during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreement

for the year were entered into:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on terms no less favourable to the Group than the
respective terms available from independent third
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders

of the Company as a whole;

(2) the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$4.9 million which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$13 million as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT EESiR&E

Connected Transactions (continued)
Share Option Scheme

The Company obtained shareholders’ approval on 18 April 2006
to modify the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide for the satisfaction of the exercise of
options through issue of new shares of the Company or transfer
of existing issued shares of the Company (“Existing Shares”) or
a combination of both. A trust for the Share Option Scheme (the
“Trust”) was established in July 2006 pursuant to a trust deed
(the “Trust Deed”) between the Company and a trustee of the
Trust (the “Trustee”) to acquire Existing Shares for the purpose
of the Share Option Scheme. The Company or its subsidiaries
will provide finances to the Trust from time to time to enable the
Trust to acquire such shares.

The Trust, whose beneficiaries include eligible participants
of the Share Option Scheme who may be directors and chief
executive of the Group, is deemed to be a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

The grant of options to the directors and chief executive of the
Group (who are connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the
provision of finances to the Trust from time to time constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed such continuing connected transactions during the
year and confirmed that:

(1) no option was granted under the Share Option Scheme

during the year; and
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Connected Transactions (continueq)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

(2) during the year, the maximum subsisting amount of the
finances provided by the Group for the purchases of
Existing Shares was approximately HK$6,829,000 which
did not exceed the cap amount of HK$90 million as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2006. The provisions of such finances were made:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on normal commercial terms; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Management Contracts

Except the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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HIE(F8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EEEiR&E

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2010, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:

%% %ﬁ} - HHE I R 1B
RZZ—ZFFRA=1TH BESRERAH
HAEMBEE LR (ERRESRBEGKRO(#FS
REAEMRAI D EXVE) EEEREZESFRIAE
RBIZE 2R R EM R 2 B & M sl 2 Ik
7 BEREAPZXAERY HERORES
ZERRBEBELTRANZ LT AR ESETRE
FRZNEETFA(ZESFR D BENEERQF
REBHERZMERLT(HIAT]) 2
M

Lo

(A) The Company (A) EAT

Approximate

percentage of

total issued

Number of share capital

shares/ of the Company

underlying HEAE

Nature of shares held EBT

Name of director interest BERG  Notes Total REBHEZ

EEiE e S et @t BaENLL

KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
iy = A

LEUNG Wai Fung Personal 200,000 200,000 0.08%
R A

WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,128,743

B A

Corporate 19,326 Note 27,143,069 11.15%
AT

LO Kwong Chi, Clement  Personal 403,754 403,754 0.17%
BEE A

TAN Lim Heng Personal 274,000 274,000 0.11%
BRARE A

DING Wai Chuen Personal 10,000 10,000 0.00%

TE# {EPN
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fn « #HEARKR G RITE

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (B) HfEAT
Approximate
percentage
of total issued
share capital
Number of of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying EEE AT
associated Nature of shares held EBTRE
corporation Name of director interest BaEks/ Total ok
BEASEE EEnz e HHRBEE @zt wmaEstt
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.62%
(Malaysia) Berhad B! A
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
EEEEERAR B2E A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
BRpk & A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%
ZH%R A
DING Wai Chuen Personal 5,000 5,000 0.00%
TE# A
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 6,067 6,067 0.00%
BRUE {EUN
GuocolLand Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 26,468,186 26,468,186 2.98%
EEEERRAE B8 A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
BEtE Kik
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,333,333 1,333,333 0.15%
R BB A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 268,000 268,000 0.03%
BH% A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures
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(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) HEtBEAT (&)
Approximate
percentage
of total issued
share capital
Number of of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying {EEE AT
associated Nature of shares held EBTRE
corporation Name of director interest Bk Total \E
BEASEE EEptz e RS E @zt maEatt
Hong Leong Bank Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,955,700 3,955,700 0.26%
B8 fEA
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
EtHE £
Hong Leong Financial Group KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,316,800 2,316,800 0.22%
Berhad B2 A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
ELE Rik
TAN Lim Heng Personal 245,700 245,700 0.02%
BRpk & {EUN
Hong Leong Industries Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 189,812 189,812 0.07%
TNAY
#2E A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
BtE £
Guocoland (Malaysia) Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
B8 A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
PR R BB A
Hume Industries (Malaysia) WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
Berhad i fnkif Rik
HLG Capital Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.41%
#2E A
GuocoLeisure Limited TAN Lim Heng Personal 950,000 950,000 0.07%

FRA BA
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Directors’

Interests in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B)

Associated corporations (continued)

Note:

The corporate interests represented the interests of Dr. WHANG
Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and 869 ordinary shares
in the Company held by SGR Investment Company, Limited
(“SGR”) and T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited (“T.C.
& Co.”) respectively. Dr. WHANG Sun Tze held 95.41% and
59.52% interests in SGR and T.C. & Co. respectively.

The Shareholders’ Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement
both dated 27 May 1997 entered into by Guoinvest International
Limited (“Guoinvest”) and, inter alia, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze
(alias: WONG Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG Tar Choung,
Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and Raven Investment
Company, Limited (“Raven”) and the Novation Agreement
dated 5 September 2003 entered into by Guoinvest, GuoLine
International Limited, a sister subsidiary of Guoinvest, Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WONG Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG
Tar Choung, Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and Raven
(collectively, the “Shareholders”) were mutually terminated by
the Shareholders with effect from 17 December 2009.

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above were

long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company or its

associated corporations.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the Company

had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as

recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352

of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

=E
#Z%ﬁ(ﬁ)

(B) HEtEAT]
Hiar

AEEENANKXRE LT E L EBSGR
Investment Company, Limited ([SGRJ) &
T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited
(IT.C. & Co. VB RIFEART 18,457 RE
ARK 869 REBEMR < i o

Guoinvest International Limited
(TGuoinvest N RELEE LT - EMEAREE
£ RMEBLZET.C. & Co. RFEERER
RARTHEDRA—-—RAEtFRA=+tH
] 2 IR R 1 5% & %8 5 15 5% & Guoinvest ~
GuolLine International Limited (Guoinvest Z
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Share Options

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May 2003 and
amended and approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting on 18 April 2006 (“Date of Approval”). The
amendments to the rules of the Share Option Scheme on the
Date of Approval by the shareholders was to, among others,
allow grant of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer
of existing shares by the Trust of the Company and to align the
rules under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate the
employees and directors of the Group and the employees of
associated companies (“Eligible Employee”) and to allow them
to participate in the growth of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or
transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
Date of Approval of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
entitlement for any Eligible Employee in respect of the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period
does not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share option will
be determined by the directors upon the grant of share option.
It will not be less than the greatest of (a) the average closing
price of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the day of offer of such a share option; (b) the
closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the day of offer of such a share option,
which must be a business day; and (c) the nominal value of a
share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 21 days inclusive of, and from the date

of making such offer.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on 23 May 2003.
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Share Options (continueq)

As at 1 July 2009, there were no outstanding option pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme. In addition, no option was granted

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme during the year.

No other option was vested, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
during the year.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad maintain share option schemes
or plans which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year, under which eligible directors of the Company
may be granted share options for acquisition of shares of
respective companies concerned. No person, being a director
of the Company during the year, held shares acquired in

pursuance of certain aforesaid share option schemes or plans.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests FEJREE ZEFIRIESS

As at 30 June 2010, the following shareholders (other than the RZBE-ZFEXA=1+H BEZIHERBERK
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in BIE33CHFAEMBR 2B BMPFTER > T
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed AT (RDBRESHEFEERQATIZBRORERER
above) had interests or short positions in the shares and KR ZRBRDLIERERG 2SRRI BFER
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register NAERGD REBEBRAS 2K ARG EEE R 5
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the 2R

SFO were as follows:

Approximate
Number of percentage
shares held Notes of interest

FAZRHHE HiaE 2 ROBEHE

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

QUEK Leng Chan 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

By

HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH”) 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%
Limited (“HLIH")

Davos Investment Holdings Private 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

Limited (“Davos”)

KWEK Leng Kee 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

(continued)

Notes:

(A)

The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in
the Company held by Guoline International Limited (“GIL");
(i) 1,393,000 ordinary shares in the Company held by Richly
Choice Development (PTC) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying shares of the
Company of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease
Limited.

The Shareholders’ Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement
both dated 27 May 1997 entered into by Guoinvest International
Limited (“Guoinvest”) and, inter alia, Dr. WHANG Sun Tze (alias:
WONG Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG Tar Choung, Madam
TEO Joo Yee, T.C. Whang & Company (Private) Limited (“T.
C. & Co.”) and Raven Investment Company, Limited (“Raven”)
and the Novation Agreement dated 5 September 2003 entered
into by Guoinvest, GIL (a sister subsidiary of Guoinvest), Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze (alias: WONG Siong Tiat), the late Mr. WHANG
Tar Choung, Madam TEO Joo Yee, T.C. & Co. and Raven
(collectively, the “Shareholders”) were mutually terminated by
the Shareholders with effect from 17 December 2009.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuoLine Capital Assets
Limited (“GCA”) which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HLCM. Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited which in turn was 71.48%
owned by GuolLine Overseas Limited (“GOL"). GOL was a
wholly-owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of
the SFO, HLCM was 49.11% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan as
to 2.43% under his personal name and 46.68% via HLH which
was wholly-owned by him. HLCM was held as to 34.49% by
HLIH. Mr. KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which
in turn held 33.59% interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions

in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors

of the Company) had an interest or a short position in the

shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

FERRZFEELR =)

Fri B~ B ¥E () GuoLine International
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s turnover for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the

year.

At no time during the year have the directors or their associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs.
PKF, Certified Public Accountants, is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 August 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 5% E(thiRE=

PKF

Accountants &
business advisers

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
63 to 162, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section
141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PKF
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 August 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT Z&8H&R

For the year ended 30 June 2010

BIZ2010F 6 530 AL FE
2010 2009
—ET—-FF —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Turnover I=E 2 7 2,193,316 2,072,448
Cost of sales SHERAR (1,745,905) (1,659,834)
Gross profit EF 447,411 412,614
Other income Habg A 8 24,771 24,654
Selling and distribution expenses  $HERDHEA (232,231) (207,037)
Administrative expenses THER (97,462) (101,260)
Other operating expenses Hihez 5 (923) (31,658)
Operating profit R 141,566 97,313
Finance costs BE R A 9 (624) (3,339)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled FE{kL +t [F1% &) {E 52
entity S Al 22 2,020 3,344
Profit before taxation RRBE A& A 10 142,962 97,318
Taxation BEXH 12(b) (20,842) (18,799)
Profit for the year AREEF 122,120 78,519
Attributable to: BEERN
Equity shareholders of the AATRE
Company 122,120 78,519
Non-controlling interests R R - —
Profit for the year AE R 122,120 78,519
Earnings per share (HK$) BRER(ET) 16
Basic PN 0.50 0.32
Diluted e N/A N/A
Proposed final dividend BREARIRE 15 24,335 21,902

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &4 2Elis %

For the year ended 30 June 2010

BIZ2010F 6 530 AL FE
2010 2009
—ET—-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Profit for the year r*F@mH 122120 78,519
Other comprehensive income REHEMEERE (BRBIR
for the year (after tax and BoERER)
reclassification adjustments):
Change in fair value of available- AHEENTBEEDR
for-sale financial assets BEZE2H 130 (103)
Transfer to profit or loss on HETHEENTKEE
disposal of available-for-sale EAER
financial assets (193) -
Exchange differences arising EBIMER NI ERE
on translation of financial MEEZERZRE
statements of foreign
operations 6,225 (786)
Other comprehensive income AEHMPEmKE  RBLE
_for the year, netoftax . 612 (889)
Total comprehensive income AERHEINRBEE
for the year 128,282 77,630
Attributable to: FER
Equity shareholders of the ARTERR
Company 128,282 77,630
Non-controlling interests IR ER - =
Total comprehensive income for AERHEINRBEE
the year 128,282 77,630

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z&MEkAE

At 30 June 2010
R2010%6 530H
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETRF
Notes HK$’OOQ HK$°000
Hiat BT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Fixed assets BEE&EE 17(a) 595,752 501,308
Leasehold land HE L 18 77,876 45,125
Intangible assets BIEEE 19 2,598 2,175
Interests in associates B N B RS 21 = 24,581
Interest in a jointly controlled HEEH E S
entity R 22 54,333 58,313
Available-for-sale financial assets  A[{HENIHKEE 23 551 654
Deferred tax assets EXEHRIBERE 13(a) 1,398 1,523
732,508 633,679
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 24(a) 312,302 183,731
Debtors, deposits and B - ZEeRk
prepayments FERK 25 189,591 214,600
Amount due from a jointly FEUW R =5 E B
controlled entity FRIE 22 8,659 10,461
Cash and cash equivalents BHERBREEE 26 568,789 639,844
1,079,341 1,048,636
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Bank loans RITER 27 65,459 40,500
Creditors, deposits received and FETERRR ~ B WS
accruals REGTER 28 324,695 294,083
Tax payable FESBE R 15,582 11,070
Other current liabilities HibRaas 29 6,388 29,254
412,124 374,907
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRESEE 667,217 673,729
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT @EERAHEE
LIABILITIES 1,399,725 1,307,408
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREER
Deferred tax liabilities ELEBIREE 13(a) 11 =
Other non-current liabilities HiERBERE 30 627 309
638 309
NET ASSETS FEE 1,399,087 1,307,099
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 NG
Share capital [N 31(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves G 1,144,882 1,052,894
Equity attributable to shareholders AN A TRRER
of the Company EiER 1,388,236 1,296,248
Non-controlling interests FEERER 10,851 10,851
TOTAL EQUITY LR YEEE 1,399,087 1,307,099

EHESER-S-TFEN\A-THEAHER
BT -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 August 2010.

WHANG Sun Tze &=Lt
DIRECTOR EE

LEUNG Wai Fung 2{&ug
DIRECTOR EE

FIRE7T1ZE162 B2 S EMT AR EREK 2

statements. — B o

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial
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HIE(F8)EBRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BAFEHR R TR

At 30 June 2010
R2010%6 30 H
2010 2009
—EB-FF —EZNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BtaF BT BEET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Fixed assets BEEE 17(b) 888 1,157
Investments in subsidiaries M8 A B 20 1,253,796 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries W B TR E 20 1,245,233 1,048,728
Available-for-sale financial assets HHENIKEEE 23 44 147
2,499,961 2,503,828
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Debtors, deposits and EWERR - ek
prepayments FEARR 25 850 935
Amount due from a jointly e E) R I {E B2
controlled entity I8 22 1,000 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBELEHE 26 151,003 283,632
152,853 284,567
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Bank loans RITER 27 2,500 12,500
Creditors, deposits received and EAERR  EWiRER
accruals EEA 28 15,054 13,876
17,554 26,376
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREHEE 135,299 258,191
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A& &ERRE
LIABILITIES =1 2,635,260 2,762,019
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBER
Amounts due to subsidiaries AT B~ R FE 20 1,550,809 1,641,459
NET ASSETS FEE 1,084,451 1,120,560
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BE NG
Share capital &N 31(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves 18 33(a) 841,097 877,206
TOTAL EQUITY g 1,084,451 1,120,560

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

25 August 2010.

LEUNG Wai Fung 2{&ug
DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial

statements.

EhEFAN-Z-BF/\A-+HAMAER
TS .

WHANG Sun Tze =E1#¥
DIRECTOR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY S48 8%

For the year ended 30 June 2010

BE2010F 6 530 HILFE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
FERAATRR
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Surplus revaluation ESOP  option Exchange  General Revenue controlling
capital premium reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve interests
REEH EIRKE
Rt RBER BBEE B AREE BRERE ERRE -REG  GGRE &
HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FT  EEFn BEFn BETn BETn BEFn BEFn BEFn BEFR
At 1July 2009 ZEENELR-B 243354 420428  B,72 80 (6,829) - 50,66 50,000 506,027 1,206,248 10,851 1,307,099
Profit for the year RERR - - - - - - - - 122120 122120 - 122120
Change in fair value of avallable-for- T HEMEKEE
sale financial assefs MEEZZY - - - 130 - - - - - 130 - 130
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal ~ HETEHER
of avalleble-for-sale financial HBEEE\ER
assets - - - (193) - - - - - (193) - (193)
Exchange differences arising FEBNEEN
on translaton of financial HRREmEL 2
statements of foreign operations ERZER - - - - - - 6,225 - - 6,225 - 6,225
Total comprehensive income RERANEES
for the year - - - (63) - - 6,225 - 122120 128,282 - 128,282
2008/09 final dividend paid HZEEN/EhE
R s - - - - - - - ey - @
Current year interim dividend paid ~~ HAFEHRHRE - - - - - - - - (4517 (1451 - (14517)
At 30 June 2010 ZZ-ZERAZTH 243,354 429423 23,727 17 (6,829) - 56491 50,000 592,053 1,388,236 10,851 1,399,087

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY S48 2 8%

For the year ended 30 June 2010

FEHR BEEB)ERAT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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BE2010F 6 530 HILFE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BRATARRE
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Surplus  revaluation ESOP option  Exchange  General  Revenue controling
capital  premium  reserves  reseve  eserve  feServe  esere  resene Ieserve interests
REEf, SIBRE
k& RftEE  BSGE BE  SRRE BREGE ENBE  -REF  UEGRE Chll FERER
HK$'000  HK8'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 WSELEHUMNN HK$'000
BT BETr BEFL BEFL BT BB BETn BETn BEEn L iaem| EEFR
At 1 July 2008 ZET)\EtE-H 3364 429423 23,733 183 (6,829) 921 51,02 50000 463069 1264912 16,888 1,271,800
Profit for the year RERR = = - - - - - - 78519 78519 - 78519
Change in fair value of avallable-for- ~ THHENHBEE
sale financial assets MEEZED - - - (103) - - - - - (108) - (108)
Released on lapse of share options ~~ BREANAER - - - - - (927) - - 97 - - -
Adjustment of surplus reservesbya  —FHBATEE
subsidiary BEBRE - - (6) - - - - = 6 - = -
Exchange differences arising ERES
on translaton of financil HRREmEL 2
statements of foreign operations ERZER - - - - - - (786) - - (786) - (786)
Total comprehensive income RERANEES
forthe year - - 6 0 - w1 -9 6% - TIEY
Acquistion of additional equity BR-FHEL
interest in a subsidiary B - - - - - - - - - - 6037 (6,037)
2007/08 finel diidend peid fi=2%t/2N%
iR - - - - - - - -y e -
Current year interim dividend paid IR EETHRE - = - - - - - - (5T (451) - (1451)
At 30 June 2009 ZEZTREARZTH 433654 429423 2,127 80 6,829) - 50266 50000 506,227 1,296,248 10,851~ 1,307,099

statements.

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&8HERER

For the year ended 30 June 2010

BiE 20106 A 30 1L FE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BEETF T
CASH FLOWS FROM HEEBY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HE&RE
Operating profit R 141,566 97,313
Adjustments for: SHE
Depreciation and amortisation ERE#H 47,990 47 262
Provision for doubtful debts RIBIRER 252 9,127
Write-down of inventories FERE 253 1,385
Interest income BT A (4,299) (11,198)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERE (8,157) (4,287)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HETHEEN
financial assets Mg EERR (227) -
Negative goodwill recognised on acquisition 181 — B A SRR
of additional equity interest in a subsidiary Apane = (2,968)
Increase in short-term employee benefit SEHEERAAIE M 92 1,221
Operating profit before working capital EEESUERINKE
changes Y Al 177,470 137,855
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FERHGEM R (125,341) 87,750
Decrease in amount due from a jointly JE Ul 2 [5]422 41418 BE SR B Y
controlled entity WA 1,802 40,114
Decrease in debtors, deposits and FEWERR - e RFEFRH
prepayments A 24,029 12,204
Increase in creditors, deposits received EARF - EWize R ERT
and accruals & FArEm 23,931 79,129
Cash generated from operations REERMEENES 101,891 357,052
Tax paid 2HE
Hong Kong profits tax paid 2 EBFEH (3,047) (2,564)
Overseas tax paid 2EINIE (13,186) (5,826)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEEBD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEMGFHE 85,658 348,662

BIE(E8)BRAR E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited



HIE(F8)EBRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&8HERER

For the year ended 30 June 2010

BZ2010%F6 530 HILFE
2009
—2ThEF
HK$’000
BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REIEENRY
ACTIVITIES HERE
Interest received EWFIE 4,299 11,198
Purchase of fixed assets and leasehold BEERTEER
land HAELH (171,088) (52,370)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (497) -
Amount received on liquidation FRBENTE
of associates 1,382 —
Acquisition of additional equity interest in i —RE AT
a subsidiary R - (2,440)
Dividend income from a jointly controlled Ui £ =) 422 51 4 22
entity RE 6,000 8,299
Net proceeds from disposal of o & Tt E AT
available-for-sale financial assets EENFEFEER 267 =
Net proceeds from disposal of HEBREEENRS
fixed assets FRIEFEE 10,646 6,817
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BREFHNIRLMAFEE
ACTIVITIES (148,991) (28,496)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING BIEEEN
ACTIVITIES HERE
Drawdown/(repayment) of bank loans RITERAYIE M,
GEA) 24,732 (171,500)
Decrease in obligations under finance RMEHESEN
leases A (160) (299)
Interest paid FTHFE (290) (3,722)
Dividends paid FTHERE (36,294) (36,294)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RE RSN ETAIEE
ACTIVITIES (12,012) (211,815)
(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HeRIRSZHEN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (@A), v (75,345) 108,351
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FIRE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR RES%E
#as 639,844 532,081
EFFECT OF FOREIGN ExEHN
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES =% 4,290 (588)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEREER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR HeLEER 568,789 639,844

The notes on pages 71 to 162 form part of these financial FIRFB7T1E12HZSEBMFART KRR
statements. — &5 o




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

1.

General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The

registered office and the principal place of business of the

Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial

Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong. During the

year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the

manufacturing and sales of flour products, edible oil and

household and institutional cleaning products.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

—REE
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EEFBR
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HEMBERECRBESBIHE
NEMEMRZAABERE B
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B EARREBREBEELAR
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HIE(F8)EBRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2010 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interests in associates and a jointly
controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see note
2(1)); and

— Certain fixed assets (see note 2(f)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

2. EETIER @

(b)

MR ERNEE

BE-_Z-ZTFAA=+HLHF
E2REMBREEEAREEU
RASEEBHERRAR —RLR
EHERE 2 e

RRLEHBEHRERERAZHE
BEED[BLRAE  HEUTUHE
DABEMEZEER

— AHUEENYEEER
MEEE2()) ;

— EATEEEERME20).

RRFEEBUBRELER 2B
BHEFTEEEEFLHE - &
ARBREFESTHENER
MEE - B8F  WARRBXZH
ETEHE - ZEMFTREBRRU
BEEBRREETERTERE
ZZHEAEMEZEMRE - EE
RERAREREMKREEHZE
EREERAEZHBHEE - &
BERREERINZE T -

EFREERRESERT - W
BRI EFFBEBR - MZRIEFT
REPEEHARETNEHH
B EErEZMERES  BW
CHEERIEEN - eioks

& AEEFETHBER
HYEA R B R R EA R RERT o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises which
is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

2. EEEER®

(b) MBREEREE

FHEEECERATEBYBRE
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HIE(F8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIzE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv) Income from management services

Income from management services is
recognised at the time when the services
are provided.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Items
presented in the statement of financial position,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into HK$ at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a
foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

2. EETIER @

(c)

(d)

W N\ 152
(iv) EERFKA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Translation of foreign currencies

(continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its present working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after a
fixed asset has been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase
in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
the fixed asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (See note 2(p)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction and exchange
differences capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to fixed assets when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the assets for their intended use are completed.
No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RFRMzE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings and leasehold 12/,% — 33 /%

improvements

Plant, equipment, furniture 5% — 33 '/;%
and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEE:BIR @

(continued)
(g) Leased assets (9) HEZE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a MBEAEERLE-—BLZHBE—

series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the B —RIRF)EEAE K

Group determines that the arrangement conveys HEPEEE-ES - EEEE

a right to use a specific asset or assets for an ENFEAE UBRER—Z43%%

agreed period of time in return for a payment or N7 BEEZHEaESHE -

a series of payments. Such a determination is EEEEUEENEE T HER

made based on an evaluation of the substance of Ty MTAEEBELZHEREIR

the arrangement and is regardless of whether the HEMEREER -

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the (i) FEEHELEZAE
Group
Assets that are held by the Group under HRAKEUHEEREZ
leases which transfer to the Group EE WMBEFEREEz
substantially all the risks and rewards of #ARED B R EREE
ownership are classified as being held ZAREE EBEZEEE
under finance leases. Leases which do EPEAURERER
not transfer substantially all the risks and B, NEETSFEREE
rewards of ownership to the Group are Z BRI BB A B 3R 5
classified as operating leases. BELREE BoEhAeE

EHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in
note 2(p). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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HIE(FB8)BRLT g Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

(i)

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in process. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the portion
of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to
interests that are not owned by the Company,
whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of
a financial liability. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed
the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary,
the excess, and any further losses applicable to
the minority, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority
have a binding obligation to, and are able to,
make additional investment to cover the losses.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the
Group’s interest is allocated all such profits until
the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed

by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 2(p)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which
operates under a contractual arrangement
between the Group or the Company and other
parties, where the contractual arrangement
establishes that the Group or the Company and
one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.

An investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the
equity method and is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 2(p)). The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses of the year are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, whereas
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i

(k)

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the jointly controlled
entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and jointly controlled entities are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in associates and jointly controlled
entities are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(p)).

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Debtors, deposits and prepayments are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(p)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting will be immaterial. In such
cases, the debtors, deposits and prepayments are
stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 2(p)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(N

(m)

Available-for-sale financial assets

At initial recognition and the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investment is disposed of or
determined to be impaired (see note 2(p)), at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at

cost less any impairment losses (see note 2(p)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.
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HIE(F8)BRLT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(n)

(o)

Creditors, deposits received and
accruals

Creditors, deposits received and accruals
are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which

case they are stated at cost.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
a business combination or an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(p)). In respect of associates or jointly
controlled entities, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the interest
in the associate or jointly controlled entity and the
investment as a whole is tested for impairment
whenever there is objective evidence of impairment
(see note 2(p)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of a business combination or an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an
associate or a jointly controlled entity during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries: see
note 2(p)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and
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HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

(continued)

— a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as

follows:

— For interests in associates and jointly
controlled entities recognised using
the equity method (see note 2(j)),
the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment as a whole with
its carrying amount in accordance
with note 2(p)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note

2(p)(ii).

— For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity
securities carried at cost are not

reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

= For trade and other current
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status and have
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics

similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EE&E:itB¥ =

(continued)
(p) Impairment of assets (continued) (p) EBERE
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity ()  RIEEFIREEHRMEN
securities and other receivables FREtBI 1S (1)
(continued)

HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

For available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale financial assets are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMizE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery
is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any
amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5:RzRMzE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— construction in progress;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land
and classified as being held under
an operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investment in subsidiaries; and

— goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMizE

2. EEETBEw

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(p) Impairment of assets (continued) () BERMEGE)

(i) RGLELHE(F)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount —

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
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their present value using a pre-tax REREBER
discount rate that reflects current BATR EFE
market assessments of time value RE - URMHIE
of money and the risks specific to B Al ¥ & 800 R
the asset. Where an asset does BENZEENEE
not generate cash inflows largely B B RE AL o i E
independent of those from other HEEMEEZR
assets, the recoverable amount is ERILFRHLEE
determined for the smallest group of SHREMEENER
assets that generates cash inflows &R BZRBIYE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiHBIE @)

FEHR BEEB)ERAT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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—_EFE2-F

(continued)
(p) Impairment of assets (continued) (p) BERMEE)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) REERHEE)
Recognition of impairment losses BRREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in FEERHEMBR
profit or loss if the carrying amount SHEEBNMMNERE
of an asset, or the cash-generating BEERBHEATWREE

unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs to

sell, or value in use, if determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an attributable proportion of production
overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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HIE(F8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability

that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when
and only when the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic probability of
withdrawal.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefit is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFZiRFRMiEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

Income tax

Income tax charges represent the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax charges.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in profit or loss because it
excludes items of income and expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes income statement items that are not

taxable and deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
difference can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill (or negative
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a
jointly controlled entity, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

(v)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax
is charged or credited in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(ii) the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or
a joint venture in which the Group is a
venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMizE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

Related parties (continued)

(V) the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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HIE(F8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The HKICPA has issued the following revised HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company and are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007), Presentation of
Financial Statements

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised 2007),
details of changes in equity during the period arising
from transactions with equity shareholders in their
capacity as such have been presented separately from
all other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of income
and expenses are presented in the consolidated income
statement, if they are recognised as part of profit or loss
for the period, or otherwise in a new primary statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to conform
to the new presentation. This change in presentation
has no effect on reported profit or loss, total income and

expenses or net assets for any period presented.

Amendments to HKFRS 7,
instruments: Disclosures—
disclosures about financial instruments

Financial
improving

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS
7, the financial statements include expanded disclosures
in note 5(f) about the fair value measurement of the
Group’s financial instruments, categorising these fair
value measurements into a three-level fair value hierarchy
according to the extent to which they are based on
observable market data. The Group has taken advantage
of the transitional provisions set out in the amendments
to HKFRS 7, under which comparative information for
the newly required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition profits
should be recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment in the investee, rather
than as income. As a result, as from 1 July 2009, all
dividends receivable from subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, whether out of pre- or post-
acquisition profits, will be recognised in the company’s
profit or loss and the carrying amount of the investment
in the investee will not be reduced unless that carrying
amount is assessed to be impaired as a result of the
investee declaring the dividend. In such cases, in
addition to recognising dividend income in profit or
loss, the company would recognise an impairment loss.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in the
amendment, this new policy will be applied prospectively
to any dividends receivable in the current or future

periods and previous periods have not been restated.

The adoption of these revised HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs have no material effect on the Group’s
results and financial positions for the current or prior
accounts periods presented. Accordingly, no prior period

adjustment has been required.

The Group has not applied any new/revised standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position except for HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments,
which may have an impact on the Group’s results and
financial position arising from changes in the Group’s
classification and measurement of financial instruments.
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HIE(F8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

Application of New and Revised 3. ¥xH
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Bt E

Standards (continued)

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the accounting year ended 30 June 2010 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based Payment

— Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Presentation

— Classification of Rights Issues

HK(IFRIC)— INT 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

HKAS 24 (Revised), Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)— INT 14, HKAS 19 - The
limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their interaction

— Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

337
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

Accounting Estimates and
Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies, management makes various estimates based on

past experiences, expectations of the future and other

information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty

that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in

the financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual value. The
determination of the useful lives and residual value

involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful lives of the fixed assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the depreciation for the

year.

Impairment of fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets

Determining whether fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the fixed assets, goodwill
and other non-current assets have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present

value.
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HIE(F8)BRLT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

4. Accounting Estimates and
Judgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

(c)

Income taxes

At 30 June 2010 and 2009, deferred tax assets
of HK$579,000 and HK$487,000 in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised respectively
as set out in note 13(a). No deferred tax asset was
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$337,638,000 (2009: HK$315,281,000) and
temporary differences of HK$188,157,000 (2009:
HK$194,459,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
on 31 December 2001 due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are
less or more than expected, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal or
further recognition takes place.

Financial Instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group is also exposed to equity risk arising from

its equity investments in other entities. These risks are

limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFEiRFRMiEE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
debtors, deposits and prepayments. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credits are offered to customers following
financial assessments and established payment
records where applicable. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these
are exceeded only with the approval of senior
company officers. Customers considered to
be with credit risk are traded on a cash basis.
General credit terms are payment by the end of
the month following the month in which sales took
place. Regular review and follow up actions are
carried out on overdue amounts to minimise the
Group’s exposure to credit risk. An ageing analysis
of the debtors is prepared on a regular basis and
is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these debtors. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk in view
of its large number of customers. The maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantee which would expose the Group to credit
risk. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
debtors, deposits and prepayments are set out in
note 25.
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HIE(F8)BRLT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and
financial resources to ensure that a healthy
financial position is maintained such that cash
inflows from operating activities together with un-
drawn committed banking facilities are sufficient to
meet the requirements for loan repayments, daily
operational needs, capital expenditure, as well as

potential business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each

subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date

the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5$R KMzt

5. €T HR =

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RENEEEEE)
210 2009
“§-% “EIE
Total Total
contractual Within ~ Morethan  More than confractual More than More than
undiscounted fyear  fyearbut  2yearshbut undiscounted  Within 1 year Tyearbut  2yearshut
cash flows or on within within cash flows oron wihin within
Camying  AUEER  demand 2years 5 years Caryng ~ AHERR demand 2years 5 years
amount  RERE  1ERER  (ENEE  2ENLE anot BERE  1EARH (EMEE  oEMiE
Faf ] bl 25 NR SENR Rif 3] pE) 2 SEHR
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
T B BT EETr AR Ao A i A
Bank loans EoEE 65,459 66,208 66,208 - - 40500 40528 40528 - S o
Creditors, deposts received ERER Shike é
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq) 5. €T H =
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FUZ=REpE

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from AEBPFEZREBEEZRERT

bank loans. B o

(i)  Interest rate profile (i) FIEHR
The following table details the interest rate TRFIIARBEHRREE
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s BRAQNAEREERT
interest earning financial assets and interest BEEENFIRER

bearing financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period:

Group
AEH
2010 2009
—E-%% —2TAE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a rate p.a
BIRERE BIRER=R
%  HK$’000 % HK$’000
EETFIT BEFT

Fixed rate financial E£&

assets: MBEE :

Time deposits EHFER 0.73 212,684 0.78 339,456
Variable rate F8

financial assets/ MBEE

(liabilities): (&fE):

Cash at banks RITIER 0.88 356,105 0.64 300,388

Bank loans IRITER 2.63 (65,459) 0.79 (40,500)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(c¢) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate profile (continued)

5. & THR =

(c) FIZEpE )

2010
—F-FF

Effective
interest
rate p.a.
BHIREANE
%

Fixed rate financial
assets:
Time deposits

Variable rate
financial assets/
(liabilities):

Cash at banks
Bank loans

Sensitivity analysis

E B

2R

MIEEE :

EHFRK 0.25
MBEE

(&fE):

IRITIER 0.0002
IRITER 0.65

At 30 June 2010, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease ranging from 25 to 54
basis points (2009: 25 to 75 basis points)
in interest rates, with all other variables

held constant, would increase/decrease the

Group’s profit after tax and revenue reserve
by approximately HK$2,211,000 (2009: HK$

905,000).

(i) FIZEREI (B
Company
AAT
2009
—EENF
Effective
interest
rate p.a.
BRERI=E
HK$’000 % HK$'000
BT BT
134,080 0.54 250,958
16,923 0.004 32,674
(2,500) 0.51 (12,500)
(i) WEEST

R=ZEB-ZTFRA=T
B AsEfE2E LA
S THRBEAEF (=B
EHE 2BB758F)
EHEMAIESHESETE
WERT  RNEBEZRE
1% 7 ) I U 28 fot 48 A5 1 0
/R #58 #2,211,000
T(ZEZThEF: B
905,0007%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFS8RRMIsE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2009.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, deposits, and
borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currency
giving rise to this risk is primarily United States
dollars (“USD”). As HK$ is pegged to USD,
the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between HK$ and USD to be
insignificant for transactions denominated in USD
which are entered into by entities with a functional

currency of HK$.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RFRMIzE

5. Financial Instruments (continveq)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
and the Company’s exposure at the end
of the reporting period to currency risk
arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which

they relate.

Debtors, deposits and EWED - BER
prepayments SEOEN

Cash and cash equivalents BEREEZ4E

Creditors, deposits received B EER - EiEE
and accruals REFHER

Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEH

Creditors, deposits received IR ~ EWES
and accruals REFHER

5.

151
18,801

(185)

ST R
() EEERE)
() REZIEEE
TRRAZERARTR

HARUEE LR WL
DONEBETENEEIE

EXEEREZ ZHIER
B fE AR D AT o
Group
*5HE
2009
“3EE
HK$ MYR usD
BT BERARE ES
‘000 ‘000 ‘000

2 Fr Fr

94 108 — 100
18,888 17,328 16,756 26,450
(239) (82) - (239)
Company
AT
2009
= 2
MYR usD
R VY
‘000 ‘000
Fr Fr
17,684 16,756 22,588
(239) - (239)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

5. Financial Instruments (contined) 5. 2T R =
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥REMEE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HEERIT

The following table indicates the
approximate change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and revenue reserve) in response
to reasonably possible changes in the

TRIHAEHRELEH
FEAZENINEERE
BB RN K
SEZBRBERERN (R W

FEHR BEEB)ERAT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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—_EFE2-F

foreign exchange rates to which the Group BFE)REENBRN S
has significant exposure at the end of the B o
reporting period.
Group
ARE
2010 2009
—g-%% =
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
Increase/ in profit after Increase/ in profit after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in foreign revenue in foreign revenue
V(S EN reserve exchange reserve
rates RRBi1E R F rates BB EIRR

MEEX  RMRHE MEER  RKEEE
N, ARG IR 1 VAC TN 7t (Ti) i/ (HD)

% HK$°000 % HK$’000

BETFT BETF T

MYR ERAETE - - 1.60 590
= = (1.60) (590)

usD E 0.31 452 0.51 1,040
(0.31) (452) (0.51) (1,040)



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting date for

presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting date, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2009.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price change

arising from investments in equity securities.

As the carrying amount of such investments is

insignificant compared to the total assets of the

Group, the management considers the exposure

to equity price risk to be insignificant.
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HIE(F8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(f)

Fair value

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair

value

The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as

follows:

= Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

= Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets
for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable
market data

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

5. TR
f REE

() HAREBEIEZEZHT
£

I

TRIEREREQARE
BIERNEMIT A
REBMBREEDE
S EEMIA  KE B
FE UHZEMBEIAWN
AREEREEARKK
MEDINRB=ZR - BRW
EEWT :

™

— E-HRE&SHR):
REEEEHRTA
RER™E 2 HRE
(RERE)HAER

nEE-

—  EIH:REEM
ERITANERD
B2HRE  IRE
EERMFTEDR
BE MEBMGE
BT At gz
DRRABEEEERE
BREBARE
YR AETSEER
BB -

—  F=ZREER) :
RBEERMNTE
DIREE MEHE
CRER Rk ) iE
BZAREELEE

FEZEMEWA
HEFERTEE
mSEIE o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(f) Fair value (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial instruments carried at fair
value (continued)

5. Rt TH«
) AREED

() HAREBEIEZEZHT
R(#&)

The Group and the Company

FEEREAT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—k £-4 E=H
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
B FT BEFT BEFTL
Assets BiE
Listed equity securities, at to@EmE
market value 44 - -

Financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

All financial instruments are carried at
amounts not materially different from their
fair values as at 30 June 2010 and 2009.

Significant financial assets and
liabilities

All significant financial assets and liabilities
are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 30 June
2009 and 2010. The carrying amounts of
non-trade balances with holding companies
and fellow subsidiaries approximate the
fair values due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial assets and
liabilities.

(i) RIELIZAEETRZSZ

AT A

R-ZE-ZFER-FFN
FERA=Z+H  FiEsw
TEMNKRAEBEEAAE

BEYEEREE -

(i) EXE2HEERERE

R-E-ZER-ZFFTN
FRA=+TH IBEK
THEEREEBENIREE
BER-ZZEZNFR=_ZF—
EFAA=THEAAE
BEXBERER - ARE
BRAGRIRERME QBN
FEZRBENFHEAER
2o oREk FHemMEE
REENREBEHEARE
BEAEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s businesses are presented in the following
segments in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment:

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range of food
products including flour and edible oils.

Detergent: the manufacture and sale of household and

institutional cleaning products.
(a) Segments results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit from
operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or

corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of interests in associates, interest in a
jointly controlled entity, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
all trade creditors and accruals attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments, bank loans managed directly by the
segments, and other current liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.

SEEH

REEXRBRTH 2R - BEEEHR
HEARERGAEERSETHREERA
SEERIERZXFIANAES -

B HERIE-RIER  BEE
MERMM -

BEAm RERIHXARIXRE
BRm e

(a) SEPELE  EEREBE

R E D BRARZT D BE2E
REEMS AEEESET
BEBAERBTIERERS
FEREIRN2XE - EERE
& :

RRBED BN ZRTAES
[EEEN]- RTHHIEER
R AEE 2B R B AR
BRER DA ZEE (WMBRQF
FEETHRAR)EHE-LTH
o

THEERREEHENEE - &
WEERARBEE  HEBHEQT
i HEEGERER - B
RAEERHAEMEXEEERI -
DHEERERIMER DI 2E
ERBEETDREZEZ BN
RREGTER  2MEEEEZ
RITER  UARHEHMRBEE
HEER AR ERAtEXEE
BRIN o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Segments results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable

6. PEPEE =)

(a)

SMEE  HERRERAE)

ARSEBTHRERASRHEZE

segments as provided to the Group’s most senior EREDIBERANT -
executive management is set out below.
2010 2009
—B-%f “EENE
Segment Segment
Food Detergent Total Food Detergent Total
B@ AERR Sipsmst B ERRm AP
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETFT BETT BETT BETT BT
Revenue from BIMR
external EFRZ
customers WA 1,882,915 304,437 2,187,352 1,790,444 275,819 2,066,263
Inter-segment D EE
revenue WA - - - - - =
Reportable EEREI B2
segment revenue LA 1,882,915 304,437 2,187,352 1,790,444 275,819 2,066,263
Reportable =
segment profit LAz
from operations BEER 134,107 45,922 180,029 122,964 25,283 148,247
Interest income FIEWA 2,449 945 3,394 3,548 254 3,802
Finance costs BEKAR (591) - (591) (2,770) (3) (2,773)
Depreciationand ~ FE
amortisation for ~ {TER
the year B (43,755) (1,816) (45,571) (43,522) (1,049) (44,571)
Other material profit HttEE
or loss items: BRER
— Exchange — ERlE
gain/(loss) /(B1) 3,237 165 3,402 (1,913) (166) (2,079)
— Provision for ~ — R
doubtful debts EE (172) (80) (252) (9,025) (102) (9,127)
Income tax charge B H (5,464) (10,346) (15,810) (13,310) (5,797) (19,107)
Reportable EERE
segment assets PU2EE 1,411,160 172,540 1,583,700 1,162,990 140,897 1,293,887
Reportable segment EfEif&
liabilities PHzEE (352,149) (64,998) (417,147) (317,173) (56,877) (374,050)
Additions to non-  F
current segment Ay
assets during the D EFERE
year BE 168,782 2,305 171,087 50,132 141 50,273
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b)

Reconciliations of reportable segment

DEEFE =)

(b) HEREHBUWA 8

A

revenue, profit or loss, assets and EEREBEZAGME
liabilities
2010 2009
—E—FF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFr BT T
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue EEREDEBZWA 2,187,352 2,066,263
Service and rental income R#ERBELSWA 5,964 6,185
Consolidated turnover REEHES 2,193,316 2,072,448
Profit it
Reportable segment profit from FEERE D2
operations KRR 180,029 148,247
Share of profit of a jointly FEfR HE S
controlled entity 1 &%= A 2,020 3,344
Finance costs BB AR (624) (3,339)
Unallocated exchange ROBZER
gain/(loss) Wi, (E58) 2,844 (20,070)
Unallocated head office and AOBW2BAAR
corporate expenses TEEH (41,307) (30,864)
Consolidated profit before FEBRBANRF
taxation 142,962 97,318
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets FEHREIIZEE 1,583,700 1,293,887
Elimination of inter-segment e e
receivables K EH (29,445) (30,858)
1,554,255 1,263,029
Interests in associates i AN ey - 24,581
Interest in a jointly controlled HEZEHERE
entity = 54,333 58,313
Amount due from a jointly FE U 2L B 4= 51 1E 88
controlled entity FRIE 8,659 10,461
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 1,398 1,523
Unallocated head office and AOBZENTR
corporate assets THEEE 193,204 324,408
Consolidated total assets REREE 1,811,849 1,682,315
Liabilities Bf&
Reportable segment liabilities EEFRELH2ERE (417,147) (374,050)
Elimination of inter-segment DEEENARZ
payables K5 29,445 30,858
(387,702) (343,192)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEHIBEE (11) -
Unallocated head office and AOBZERNTR
corporate liabilities tEERE (25,049) (32,024)
Consolidated total liabilities meERas (412,762) (375,216)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEME

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(c)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s non-
current assets. The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the fixed assets and
leasehold land is based on the physical location
of the assets, in the case of goodwill, the location
of the operation to which they are allocated, in
the case of interest in associates and interest in a
jointly controlled entity, the location of operations.

NTS BAF5eRhFRMI5E

6. NEEFE @)
(c) HWEEHE

TREIWHLBEVEGRBHE()
REBBIIREF ZWA; Kl
FEBFRBDEE - TEFNAE
wEDRERBREAIENEE
ZWHMEE - EEEEREE
TR R R R E A T
E - BmENBEENREER
TERIANEERHEME - BERQ
BB R A E AR S A AT
EBitERRHEEBMME

2010 2009
—%-%% =
Hong Kong PRC 1611 Hong Kong PRC Total
FE  DEXE &3 R PEIRE &it
LK CHDE €08 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AETr ERTT  ESTT iR iR L A
Revenue from external BIMNREF 2

customers N 464,638 1,722,714 2,187,352 477,880 1,588,383 2,066,263
Non-current assets FRBEE 88,825 641,734 730,559 19,115 512,387 631,502
During the years 2010 and 2009, there was no —E-BEFNZBENEFEFR
major customer accounting for more than 10% of REBRENIRE-—BRF(FEAE

the total turnover of the Group. HEXEZA10% o

7. Turnover 7. B

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on
pages 163 to 167.

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods
supplied to external customers as well as service and

AATAE—BREEZRAT  EHWBEA
AMNEEEKFVNRE163HEE 167
Ho

EXRBENARETHINEFPFNERNESR
FEMBRBREEWA - AEBHEX

rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set BT :
out below:

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BEF T
Sales of goods HEBE R 2,187,352 2,066,263
Service and rental income iGN A ON 5,964 6,185
2,193,316 2,072,448

FEF MIE(EB)BRLIT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

=

=

—_F-=F



FEHR BEEB)ERAT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

=

=

—_EFE2-F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&RzRMIzE

8. Other Income 8. Hhlg A
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBEFr BT
Negative goodwill recognised on #iE—=x
acquisition of additional equity Mt B A Bl RE R
interest in a subsidiary ERNERE - 2,968
Management fee income EEEBEWRA 2,690 2,690
Sales of scrapped materials HEER 2,349 2,155
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBREEE KRS 8,157 4,287
Gain on disposal of available-for- HETHEEMNE %
sales financial assets BERS 227 —
Interest income FEWA 4,299 11,198
Exchange gain HPEEFE 5 U &R 6,246 —
Miscellaneous Hith 803 1,356
24,771 24,654
9. Finance Costs 9. BRIERRE
2010 2009
—E—FF —E2ENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EBEFr BT
Interest on bank loans and RAEFREIEE
overdrafts wholly repayable ZIRITERE
within five years EXRE 624 3,327
Interest on finance leases RMEHRENFEXH = 12
624 3,339
The Group’s effective borrowing interest rate for the year EEREENEREEEERAE1.4%
was approximately 1.4% (2009: 2.4%) per annum. (ZBENE 1 2.4%) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&:RzRMIzE

10. Profit Before Taxation

10. B&%imiiaFl

Profit before taxation is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration — note 17)
— Wages, salaries and
allowances

— Defined contribution

retirement plans

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortisation of leasehold land

Amortisation of intangible assets

Net exchange (gain)/loss

Provision for doubtful debts

Operating lease rental of properties

Cost of inventories (note 24(b))

Net proceeds from disposal of

fixed assets
Less: Carrying value of fixed assets

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Rental income less outgoings

BRBE AT R
2R (FFA)

BRI (BREESHES
— KfEF11)
—I&- -FHek
p=4-1
— EFEFER
HE
BN &
EEEERE
HE ey
B EEHE
TRINEER (W) EiE
RIRREE
KREHEVMENESER
TFERAK(KEF24))
HERTEEENEBRIE
EEE
B BEEEREE

HEEEEE RS

HERARE X

PI) 2009
—F-%5 —zBhE
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT B F T
161,642 144,274
11,812 9,697
173,454 153,971
995 821
45,570 44,276
2,341 2,986

79 —
(6,246) 22,149
252 9,127
2,914 2,525
1,745,905 1,659,834
(10,646) (6,817)
2,489 2,530
(8,157) (4,287)
(5,964) (6,185)

FEF MIE(EB)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

=

—=-F



FEHR BEEB)ERAT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

=<

—E_=

}I"l. |’ |

\ Y

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5iR KMz

MITHAE

it

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments

11. EER
Bl £

(a)  The directors’ emoluments of the Company and its (a) WREEBQAIKHE—FB~+—
subsidiaries calculated in accordance with Section FTE 2R QT REHB AT
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are EEMESHATBENT ¢
as follows:

Group
158
Retirement Housing
Basic salary/ schemes  benefits and
Directors’ fees contributions allowances
¥s/ Bonus BINER EERH 2010
EE2 kS bz B REs =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BHFT EBFT
Executive director HiTES
LEUNG Wai Fung e 2,004 1,073 200 742 4,019
Non-executive directors FnrEE
WHANG Sun Tze BELE 180 - 180
KWEK Leng Hai By 220 = 220
TAN Lim Heng BRAE 180 - 180
TSANG Cho Tai 2% 230 = 230
DING Wai Chuen (Note (i)) TRE&EWE () 191 = = = 191
Independent non-executive directors BFiFEHITES
LO Kwong Chi, Clement EE% 265 - - - 265
LO Kal Yiu, Anthony (Note(ii) BRUB(E (i) 222 = = = 222
AU Ghee Ming (Nots i) B i) 165 - _ _ 165
Year ended —E-FF
30 June 2010 NAZTELEE 3,657 1,073 200 742 5,672
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5$R KMzt

1. EERGRITHRAS

11. Directors’ and Senior

Executives’ Emoluments (continued) kAT
(continued) (@) (&)
Group
58
Basic salary/ Retirement
Directors’ schemes
fees contributions Housing
F&/ Bonus BANER benefits 2009
0k Tt SRR BERR | =
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BT BEFT BEFT =)
&
Executive director BITES §_
LEUNG Wai Fung R 1,980 495 198 756 3,429 é’
3
Non-executive directors FHTES <
WHANG Sun Tze BEE 180 - - - 180 ]
KWEK Leng Hal iy 220 - - - 220 *g
TAN Lim Heng BAE 180 - - - 180 3
TSANG Cho Tai RGeS 220 - - - 220 g
4
(<]
Independent non-executive directors BiHTES :S:
LO Kwong Chi, Clement BET 255 - - - 255 =
DING Wai Chuen TR 235 - - - 235 S
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note(i) BRR (ML (i) 99 - - - 99 £
IRIE Yasuaki (Note (iv)) NIZRH (M (v) 81 - - - 81 -
125
Year ended —EEAE
30 June 2009 ~A=tELEE 3,450 495 198 756 4,899

Z-ZFEFH BEEB)ERAT




E—

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&RzRMzE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a) (continued) (a) (&

Notes: Viorzan

FEHR BEEB)ERAT g Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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(i)

(i)

Mr. DING Wai Chuen was re-designated as non-
executive director on 1 September 2009.

Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony was appointed as
member of board audit committee on 1
September 2009.

Mr. AU Chee Ming was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 26
August 2009 and was appointed as member of
board remuneration committee on 1 September
2009.

(i)

(il

TERBEENRZ-ZZZNAER
A—BXERFATES -

ERBAEER-ZZNFH
B-BEEEZEREZER
REBEHE -

EBEALTER-ZZTAFEN
AZtABHEAQABX
FHPUTES R=ZSZNF
NBE—BEZEIRESSH
MESERE -

(iv) Mr. IRIE Yasuaki resigned as independent (iv) MNIZPREB-ZZENEF
non-executive director of the Company on 12 +TZA+ZHRBEEARAF
December 2008, BIFHITES -

(v) Basic salary/directors’ fees — The amounts paid (v) B/ ENzHE  EEw
and payable to non-executive directors are £ — FPTESUESES
directors’ fees. The amount paid and payable to FRKE e HITESUEH S
executive director was basic salaries. 7 WER o

(vi) Bonuses paid/payable for the year were (vi) REEZEN EHEAD
performance related. REZETE

(vij  There was no arrangement under which a (i) WEITLEBERESREN

director had waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments.

RWEEM S ZHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)

(b)

The five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included one
(2009: one) director, details of whose remuneration
are set out above. The remaining employees’

emoluments are analysed as follows:

B
i

Salaries, bonus, housing benefits & - E4 - EEEA

ERERITHEAE
- A7)

(b) ABZRSKANES

FEESWRANEERE-—RE
B(ZEZTAF: —F) 2R
HECINEX - BT RENH
EFHBFWT

2010 2009
%% —2EhE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BB

and share-based payments EURGDAERZ
IEE 7,589 6,802
Retirement schemes contributions R {R &5 &Itk 150 244
7,739 7,046

The number of employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands was:

MeBTIRENESHE W

2009
HK$ B —ZEENF
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1,000,001 — 1,500,000 -
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 3 2
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1

4 4

The remuneration of certain individuals represents
remuneration received in respect of services
rendered to the Company and its Hong Kong and
overseas subsidiaries.

ETEENMERBERBARL
ARARABERBRBINEL
AINBE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

12. Taxation

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies
within the Group operating in Hong Kong during

the year.

Overseas taxation represents income tax charge
on the estimated taxable profits of certain
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China,
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective

regions.

Certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
have been exempted from PRC income tax with
effect from 1 January 2008. As a result of the
change, income tax of these subsidiaries for the
period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008 was
written back during the year ended 30 June 2009.
The deferred taxation charge for the year ended 30
June 2009 included de-recognition of deferred tax
assets of HK$8,178,000 and deferred tax liabilities
of HK$808,000 recognised by these subsidiaries
in prior years as a result of the exemption from
PRC income tax.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 12.5% to
25% (2009: 10% to 25%).

12. HilE

(a)

EEBEENEE AR ZFEH
EHEDIBREFAMGTTERED R
FIEBE165%(ZEENEF !
16.5%) 512 ©

BONBEIERPEAAEEE 2H
B B 2 B Ak 5T B SR B R A
B2 ER B RAENRIES
&O

FEAEKLE 2 THEARH
—EENF-A—HEERET
BIFFEH - it - ZEMBAA
R-ZEENEFE-—HA—RE=-ZZ
NEXNB=+HHEMNFAEHRE
BE-_ZFThEA~A=1THLE
ERE -t EBE=ZZH
FERNA=THLEE BARZE
WMEAREREPEREHR
AU FEERINEEREE
E 18,178,000 7T & IE L i 18
& &8 1 808,000 TTE/EREM o

RBEARELEE CHMHEA
B FRABHRHBHERI125%
BEBN(ZZEZENF 10%E
25%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RFRMzE

12. Taxation (continved) 12. #IH =)
(b) The income tax charge represents the sum of (0) PR Bi A RB A BB RIEL
the tax currently payable and deferred taxation BBV - HARWNT -

charges as follows:

2010 2009
—E-%F —EZhEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
Current tax: INERIF -
Hong Kong taxation BEEBBIIE 5,409 5,406
Under/(over)-provision in respect ~ BBIEEZFRE, -
of prior years (HB58)B1E 1,687 (145) é
5
a
7,096 5,261 &’
©
=]
c
<
Overseas taxation MR IE 13,355 8,344
Tax paid in prior year written LAl FEE X E
back (note 12(a)) e eIk E
(KtaE 12(a)) - (1,174) B
Under-provision in respect of UAIFEE 2T REE 2
prior years 255 = g’
<
[
13,610 7,170 8
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3
£
Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): IESERLIE (BfaE 13(a)) - 3
Current year KEE 136 (1,002)
Amount recognised in prior year DRIFERRERE
de-recognised (note 12(a)) [E1 58 (BrEE 12(a)) - 7,370 'E
=
i
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 136 6,368 W
la
pm¢
20,842 18,799 F‘E
o3
tH_
'hH_

=<

—E-T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

12. Taxation (continued)

(c)

(d)

12. $ilH =)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to

the profit before taxation per consolidated income

statement as follows:

©

ARE WA R P BRBADS R A F
E2BBEZHAHOT :

2010 2009
—E-TF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
Profit before taxation BRBLAD R R 142,962 97,318
Notional tax on profit before RERAR
taxation, calculated at the rates BB RAE 2
applicable to profits in the FRBL AR R 2
countries concerned 18 27,477 19,345
Tax effect of non-deductible BB AR
expenses 2R E 2,052 7,947
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  EERF U A K%
-4 (12,124) (8,992)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KR FLUMER 2 REEH
recognised KEBzHETE 9,282 3,771
Tax effect of utilisation of tax FEARUBIEERTF U
losses not previously recognised BRZEEER 2R
A4 (7,018) (7,342)
Tax effect of profit attributable to a &AL H[E)# 4 {E 52
jointly controlled entity BB g E (333) (552)
Under/(over)-provision in prior URIEEZ2T R, /(&8
years ) B E 1,942 (145)
Tax paid in prior year written back — LAATEE S S T8 5 EI1H - (1,174)
Net deferred tax assets recognised B LA FERR 2 IE
in prior years de-recognised IR = 7,370
Others Hit (436) (1,429)
Tax charge for the year REEREH XIS 20,842 18,799
Tax effects relating to the components of (d) EHib2EKZEMBIEHE

other comprehensive income

The net tax effects relating to the components of

other comprehensive income were insignificant for

disclosure purpose for the years 2010 and 2009.

E-E-TR-TENEE B
Bt 2 T Rk M0 E FR 2045 9B
ENFYE  HREBMELT
EP



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

13. IBEHIIH

F&EE

13. Deferred Taxation
(a) Group (a)
EHEOPMBRAEPRINEL

BE(EE) BERARAEE
RURFE2SBWT :

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements thereon

during the current and prior years are as follows:

Accelerated  Impairment
tax of fixed Tax
depreciation assets  Provisions losses Others Total
MERBHRE ETELERE i HHER ] 3
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  BRTT BMFr BRI BRTT BN 2
A
At 1 July 2008 “EEN\FtA-A 7132 (13,720) (873) (432) 2 (7,891) §-
Charged/(credited) to RBERAZR/ (GIA) %
income statement (1) 2
(note 12(b)) (6,880) 13,720 (415) (55) 2 6,368 <
g
At 30 June 2009 “¥EAERA=HH 252 - (1,288) (487) - (1,523) £
-l
At 1 July 2009 “EZNELA-A 252 = (1,288) (487) - (1,523) g’
Charged/(credited) to REERAZE/ (GTA) §,
income statement (HiE 1) Jg:
(note 12(b)) 327 - (99) (92) - 136 -
At 30 June 2010 —§-%57R=1H 579 = (1,387) (579) = (1,387)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

AT RIESE R R AR eR D AT T3 B B

balances for financial reporting purposes: TR EDIERFA - T
=

2010 2009 T

k- 223 —EETNE %

HK$°000 HK$'000 e

ERFiT BT =

i

Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE (11) - ﬁ
Deferred tax assets FEIEIBEE 1,398 1,523 *Eii(P’
iy

1,387 1,523 !

(é8) Lam Soon



HIE(FB8)BRLT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

13. Deferred Taxation (continuea)

(a) Group (continued)

The Group is liable to withholding tax on dividends
to be distributed from subsidiaries in the Mainland
China in respect of their profits generated on or
after 1 January 2008. At 30 June 2010, temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland
China amounted to HK$184,572,000 (2009:
HK$81,309,000). Deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits
will not be distributed by these subsidiaries in the

foreseeable future.

At 30 June 2010, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$341,149,000 (2009: HK$318,230,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$3,511,000 (2009: HK$2,949,000)
for such losses. No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$337,638,000 (2009: HK$315,281,000) due
to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of HK$6,279,000 (2009: HK$7,077,000)
that will expire within five years. Other losses can

be carried forward indefinitely.

13. IBEHBIE =)

(a)

*KE (&)

TEBEFEBEALE ZHEBEL
AERDSIKR=—ZFEENFE—A—
H TS M FDB A INEB o B
—E-ZFEXA=Z1+H BB
FTEEBRTFEBRZHER A
AOHEABHEEAEEZEREBB
#184,572,000(Z & N F :
81,309,000) o H R A A A= Hl
ZEWBARNREEEK X2
AERARRRZZEMBE L TR
AR TEDIREA - Bt R
DR 3% 55 R R A FE A 2 30
BRIELEHIEAE

R-ZZE-FEXA=1+AH A&
B A 8 #341,149,000 0 (= &
TN F B ¥ 318,230,000 )
(9 B AR A0 SR R FE SR BLUR R Y
BEEE BEPRZEaRRT
FB#3,511,000 T(ZZEAF
5 2,049,000 7T ) WYIEER B E
E o Tl &R 9 8 % 337,638,000 7T
(ZZZNF | #B¥315,281,000
TOMAIKINEE BRKRR
EAW A AITER M BT R
RERIAAELEBEBEE - 3
o KRBRANBREBEGTES
#6,279,000 Tt ME B ¥R E
FRIBM-ZZLF: BE
7,077,000 7T) o HAhEIE A LUK
PREAML AL LR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RFRMzE

13. Deferred Taxation (continueq)

(a)

(b)

Group (continued)

At 30 June 2010, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$188,157,000 (2009:
HK$194,459,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
on 31 December 2001. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of these temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of taxable
profit streams against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

Temporary differences arising in connection with
interests in associates and a jointly controlled
entity are insignificant.

Company

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the statement of financial position
and the movements thereon during the current
and prior years are as follows:

13. IBXEBLIIE &)

(a)

(b)

Accelerated

*&EE(#)

R=-ZBZE-—F+-A=+—8H"
rEBAETEEEEREE
THIERERE  ZERER=
E-ZENAS+EEEEEL
7 #188,157,000 L(Z 2 E N1
& . B %194,459,00070 ) By E
BHER  AARFEFNHART
FERM FIUTERZE=ERR
BEERIEEE o

BB 3 B M SL )42 U M BE M
HENERFMEERLFREK -

AT
T B 3R 2% o #E R Y IR SE B IR

(&), BEREAREER LA
FENBBHNT -

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
IEBFINE BiFsESE A%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT BT
At 1 July 2008 —EENFtA—H 92 (92) -
Charged/(credited) to Rk RAZE
income statement (§F ) 16 (16) =
At 30 June 2009 —EEAFAA=TH 108 (108) -
At 1 July 2009 —EENFtA—H 108 (108)
Charged/(credited) to RikERRZE,
income statement (5t A) (31) 31 -
At 30 June 2010 —E-FERA=+H 77 77) —

FEF MIE(EB)BRLIT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&RzRMIzE

14. Profit Attributable to 14. KA TR B F
Shareholders of the Company
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company AARBRREGZFEEETERERL
included a profit of HK$456,000 (2009: loss of A BRI B 456,000 TTHYEF) (=
HK$23,488,000) which has been dealt with in the STHE | BB 23,488,000 7T) °

financial statements of the Company.

15. Dividends 15. B2
2010 2009
—E—F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
2009: Final dividend of HK$0.09 —E2EENF  FASHKRE
per share paid during the year BRESREBE0.09T(=ZE
(2008: HK$0.09 per share) ZENFE GRBE0.097T)
21,777 21,777
2010: Interim dividend of HK$0.06 —Z—Z%F @ FROTH
per share paid during the year RESREBE0.06 T(=F
(2009: HK$0.06 per share) ZNF GRBY0.067T)
14,517 14,517
36,294 36,294
2010: Final dividend proposed after —Z—Z 4% : iR B REZ
the end of the reporting FKHREFRO.10T (==
period of HK$0.10 per share ~ EhE : SRBH0.097T)
(2009: HK$0.09 per share) 24,335 21,902
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting BRBRIKE 2ARARE » WEERE
period has not been recognised as liabilities at the end of KINBEEIER -

the reporting period.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RFRMzE

16. Earnings Per Share

(a)

(b)

Basic (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company of HK$122,120,000 (2009:
HK$78,519,000) for the year and the weighted
average of 241,961,000 (2009: 241,961,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated

16. BiREF

¥

BRERBADREARRQ TR
BRPE {3 ) 78 %5 122,120,000 7T
(ZZ=EZ & : B%78,519,000
TIRREAEFERERITEB
B 2 hn % F 15 241,961,000
B(=2Z Z 1 F 241,961,000

as follows: BR) - FHEWT :
2009
—E2ENEF
"000
7:
Issued ordinary shares at FORFERSEHIT
beginning and end of year ZiE AR 243,354 243,354
Shares repurchased in prior DRIFEEE SRR
years (note 31) (BtaE 31) (1,393) (1,393)
Weighted average number of FEZEBRME
ordinary shares for the year FEHE 241,961 241,961
Diluted (b) HH

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended
30 June 2010 and 2009 were not presented as
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding at 30 June 2010 and 2009.

HRE=E-BER=FENE
AA=+ARERBEREER
ZEER Rl BE-F-F
FR-BEAFAASTALE
& WEASITEREERT -

FEF MIE(EB)BRLIT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5:RzRMzE

17. Fixed Assets

17. BEEE

(a) Group (a) AEH
Medium term
leasehold ~ Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside furniture and
improvements Hong Kong  Construction  motor vehicles
FENHEY w5 in progress BE &1 Total
BFREE ikl HEIR flRAE At
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BT BEFT BEFT
Cost or valuation: BAES fME :
At 1 July 2009 “EENELA-A 20,073 622,716 74,816 608,620 1,326,225
Exchange adjustments ERHZ - 3,941 627 6,714 11,282
Additions iR 380 50,077 31,129 56,804 138,390
Transferred from construction in ERREIR
progress - 61,668 (101,673 39,905 =
Disposals tE - (7,131) - (13,316) (20,447)
At 30 June 2010 —5-%ErA=+E 20,453 731,21 4,099 698,727 1485450
Representing: fi%:
Cost HAE 9,568 731,271 4,999 698,727 1,444,585
Valuation — 2000 i — %% 10,865 = = = 10,865
At 30 June 2010 —5-%£rAZ1E 20,453 731,21 4,099 698,727 1,455,450
Accumulated depreciation: 2itHE:
At 1 July 2009 Z2ENELR-A 6,314 275,349 - 401,172 682,835
Exchange adjustments EjiE - 3,486 - 3,683 7,169
Charge for the year REENE 1519 18,283 = 25,768 45,570
Written back on disposals HERED - (5,206) = (12,752) (17,058)
A0 dure 2010 Se-eeAzt Tew mn S L LB
Impairment: HE:
At 1 July 2009 and ZEENELR-BR
_Wgweat  CE-REAAZYE . - - e
Net book value: TREFE :
At 30 June 2010 = e 12,620 207,71 4,999 280,856 595,752




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMizE

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

17. BEEE =

(a) Group (continued) (a) XEE#E)
Medium term
leasehold ~ Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside furniture and
improvements Hong Kong  Construction  motor vehicles
EaagRy peg Lol in progress BE R Total
BFRES ey ERIE fRHRRE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BEFr BEFT BT
Cost or valuation: BAESE:
At 1 July 2008 “EEN\EtE-H 19,838 626,726 29,665 610,841 1,287,070
Exchange adjustments Bz - (934) 6 (1,333) (2,261)
Additions 5 285 282 45,145 6,708 52,370
Disposals e - (3,358) - (7559) (10,954)
At 30 June 2009 —ESAERAZTH 20,073 622,716 74816 608,620 1,326,225
Representing: fik:
Cost HAE 9,208 622,716 74816 608,620 1,315,360
Valuation — 2000 fhE — Z5%EF 10,865 = = = 10,865
At 30 June 2009 “EEAERAZHE 20,073 622,716 74,816 608,620 1,326,225
Accumulated depreciation: 2iiE:
At 1 July 2008 ZEE)\ELF-A 4,858 261,139 - 382,497 648,494
Exchange adjustments EiE - (727) - (784) (1,511)
Charge for the year TEERE 1456 17,284 = 25,536 44,216
Written back on disposals HLEREE - (2,347) - 6,077) (8,424)
At 30 June 2009 “EEAERAZHE 6,314 275,349 - 401172 682,835
Impairment: e
At 1 July 2008 and “¥%\5tR-BR
Soune0s  CREARRAZYE . - - tem
Net book value: REFE:
At 30 June 2009 —¥%nERAZ1E 13,759 205,285 74816 207448 501,308

At 30 June 2010, the net book value of fixed
assets held under finance leases amounted to
HK$1,022,000 (2009: HK$496,000).

RZZE-ZFFEXA=1+H UBE
HEBENECEERHTERB
#1,022000(ZFEZ2 N F: B E
496,000 7T) °

FEF MIE(EB)BRLIT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

— -
=

—=



FEHR BEEB)ERAT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

=

=

—_EFE2-F

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

17. BEEE =

(b) Company (b) HFATF
Office equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles
MAERME
REARRE
HK$’000
BT
Cost: ARAE :
At 1 July 2008 —EENFtA—H 9,529
Additions R 758
Disposal HE (383)
At 30 June 2009 —EZhFEARAZ=TH 9,904
Accumulated depreciation: Zitine
At 1 July 2008 —E2FEN\EtLHA—H 8,475
Charge for the year KEEFE 424
Written back on disposals HERREE (152)
_At30dJune2009 = EEAFKA=tA 8,747
Net book value: AREFE :
At 30 June 2009 —EEAFAAZ=TH 1,157
Cost: BAE :
At 1 July 2009 —EENFELA—H 9,904
Additions R 189
Disposals HE (188)
_At30June20t0 —¥-¥FXAZtE 8,905
Accumulated depreciation: HiHinE -
At 1 July 2009 —EZNhFLA—H 8,747
Charge for the year KEERE 454
Written back on disposals HEZERD (184)
At 30 June 2010 —E-FEXA=1+H 9,017

Net book value:
At 30 June 2010

ARTEFE -
—E2-TFA=+H

888
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

1=
18. Leasehold Land 18. HHE b
Group
XEE
2010 2009
—E—%F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
At beginning of year EA %D 48,115 51,193
Exchange difference E R AR 1,264 (92)
Additions R 33,299 =
Amortisation ey (2,341) (2,986)
At end of year R 80,337 48,115
Current portion (included TEME S (B
in debtors, deposits and RERER  Zek
prepayments — note 25) FERR — MfEE 25) (2,461) (2,990)
Non-current portion FERENEI D 77,876 45,125
The Group’s leasehold land comprises: AEBEZHE T EIE
Group
AEHE
2010 2009
—E—FF —EEAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFIT BT T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: BERzHELH
Medium-term lease RERFE A 13,920 14,296

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: @2 E 1 :
Medium-term lease FRHAFE 4 66,417 33,819

80,337 48,115

FER FEEB)ERAT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5:RzRMzE

19. Intangible Assets 19. L& E

FEHR FEEB)ERAT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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Group

FEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
[k Bz &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BETFIT

Cost or valuation: RA{EEEE :
At 1 July 2008 and —EENFELA—-BR

30 June 2009 —EZNFEANA=TH 14,714 38,809 53,523
Exchange difference ER AR — 5 5
Additions IR = 497 497
At 30 June 2010 —¥-B¥FXA=tE 14,714 39,311 54,025

Representing: &K :
Cost RAE 14,714 37,311 52,025
At directors’ valuation BEEN—NEt=F/EHDN

in 1972 {H1E = 2,000 2,000

At 30 June 2010 —E-FEFXA=+H 14,714 39,311 54,025
Accumulated ZotiEss -

amortisation:

At 1 July 2008 and —EEN\FtA—H-

30 June 2009 —EERFEXRA=1H — 38,809 38,809
Charge for the year IREEE — 79 79
At 30 June 2010 —E-FFERA=+H - 38,888 38,888

Impairment: BiE :
__At30June2010 =¥-¥FK”A=tH 12589 —_ . 12,539
Net book value: BRTEE :
At 30 June 2010 —E-FFXA=+H 2,175 423 2,598
At 30 June 2009 —EFAERAZ+H 2,175 - 2,175




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMizE

19.

20.

Intangible Assets (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the respective
cash-generating unit (CGU) is determined based on
a value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those relating to the discount rate,
forecast growth rates and the expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs during the period. The
discount rate used for the value in use calculation is
based on the prevailing bank’s borrowing rate offered
by major financial institutions which reflects the current
market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based
on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.

Interests in Subsidiaries

19. ML &S E =)

BAMEZRSELEMZBEA
&

BEZRATEIMERMD B - HE
BEELENNTERESHARREREN
BEFE ZEBEEACRSRERE
ERREEERENMBRETE - 5
BEEREERNEIERRA/FTER B
RE -HANEEREEAAINRYE
- AEEABENTRRRRRBEIR
TRBBIRMZBRTERFIREEMZ
MERUARMTEENHERKBEE
kZzReEEEM 2 BERRZRITH
fl o BMRERENEREANAE - EE
REERANZCAZBEEL R AR
MERRECTERE

20. B A S

Company
AAT

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
B Fr BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEHIRPRAE 1,457,016 1,457,016
Impairment loss HEE S (203,220) (203,220)
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARIKRE 1,253,796 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURH B A B3 IE 1,245,233 1,248,728
2,499,029 2,502,524
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARRE (1,550,809) (1,641,459)
948,220 861,065

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free,
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 163 to 167.

Y/ EAMBLARRALDARE - &
ERRRBEEEERR

EMBRARANERFIINE163HEESR
167H °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5:RzRMzE

21. Interests in Associates 21. B ENTIER
Group
XEE

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$’000

EEFir JBEET T

Share of net assets EEFEEE - 24,581

The associates were in liquidation at 30 June 2010. R-ZE—ZFFXA=1H  ZEHELN

AIETEERH -

Details of the associates were as follows: BENTINERFYOT :

Place of incorporation Percentage of
Name of company and operation equity holding Principal activities
AT & il EE I BRIERFEDE EEEH

Group Company
AEE AT

Omeron Profits Limited* British Virgin Islands 50 — In liquidation
KEERRES B8
Tepac Profits Limited* British Virgin Islands 50 — In liquidation
RKEHERAEHS BEH
" Companies not audited by PKF e ZENTEHAESRER(FE)S5
B E T %
Financial position BAFEAR
2010 2009
—2-%5 —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
ERFT BEFT
Total assets wEE - 49,163
Total liabilities wnamE - (1)
Net assets FEE - 49,162
Net assets attributable to the Group SREBRAEBZFEE - 24,581
Results E 3
During the year, there was no (2009: no) turnover nor RAEAFER  ZEQ T E(ZZEZN

profit or loss attributable to the Group. FE)HEEIEEEGERRHEE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&:RzRMIzE

22. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 22, H[E = HEEERE
Entity

Group Company
AEEH AATH

2010 2009 2009
—g-zx ELIFE: = K
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
#rrr Wenasdl %77 ik

Share of net assets EEFEE 54,333 58,313 - =
Amount due from a jointly FE U L B4 I {E 58

controlled entity FRIE 8,659 10,461 1,000 =
The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is interest- ZEWHLEIESEERER S - SIKH

free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:

REFREZRAGEE -

HEZGEROENFINT

Percentage of

Place of equity holding
incorporation/ indirectly
Name of company operation B#ERHERSB  Principal activities
AT & S EE I BOE IEXH
Group
F%E

Evergreen Oils & Fats Limited”

(“Evergreen”)

RERMARLT

*

Companies not audited by PKF

Cayman lIslands/
Hong Kong

Es BE

50 Blending and distribution of
edible oils, vegetable fats,
and shortenings

BRERDEERM - BYELR
SN

: ZEARFARNERER(FB)EF
A= B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&RzRMIzE

22. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 22, HEEHIEREERS =

Entity (continueq)
Summarised financial information in respect of the BEERAEB 2 HEZEGIERE 2 GKE
Group’s jointly controlled entity is set out below: REEZ50T :
Financial Position AR M
2010 2009
—B—TF —EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
EEFT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,776 14,754
Current assets REBEE 236,083 266,767
Totalassets ] wEE 251,859 281,521
Current liabilities EI=NE (141,762) (162,851)
Non-current liabilities FREBERE (1,431) (2,044)
Total liabilittes ] wes| (143,193) (164,899)
Net assets FEE 108,666 116,626
Net assets attributable to the Group BEEBRAREE 2 FEE 54,333 58,313
Results E 4
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFIT BT T
Turnover L0 686,422 729,172
Profit for the year REERR 4,040 6,688
Profit for the year attributable BN AEBZAREE

to the Group el 2,020 3,344




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&:RzRMIzE

22. Interest in a Jointly Controlled

23.

Entity (continueq)

Results (continued)

22,

On 25 February 2009, the Group entered into a
Supplemental Agreement with Hop Hing Group. Pursuant

to the Supplemental Agreement, the edible oil joint

venture company, Evergreen, will continue until 31

December 2023 unless terminated on 31 December 2013

or 31 December 2018 by either party giving notice in

writing of not less than twelve months but not more than

twenty-four months prior to the date of termination.

Available-for-sale Financial
Assets

e F i HlERRER )

L3¢ )

RZZBZBANF_A=-+HAB  KEEH
EHEEFETAANE RBRZERD
- RABAREHER EERHES
RATNEEMBEEE _ST_=F
TZA=+—8 BRFEEA—-—FHAKL
BB ZETFPRtT-BAETRZR
“THEANEEBH R=ZT—=F
TZA=+-H=R=E-N\E+=A
=+—HA&KILEE -

23. AHHENMBEE
Group Company
AEE AAT

2010
—F-FF
HK$°000
EETFT

2009 2009
—EENF —E2FREF
HK$’000 IGO0 HK$'000

BETT -t BN TT

Listed equity securities, LtHiE%
at market value miE
— in Hong Kong — &E 15 15 15 15
— outside Hong Kong — /4 29 132 29 132
44 147 44 147
Unlisted equity FELHES
securities, at cost A 24,262 24,262 24,262 24,262
Impairment loss BIERS1E (24,262) (24,262) (24,262) (24,262)
Club debentures, at cost EFF{EHB A 787 787 - —
Impairment loss B ESIE (280) (280) - —
. s07 507 = =
551 654 44 147
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5$R KMz

. 1t
24. Inventories 24. 58
(a) Inventories in consolidated statement of (a) MEEUBRARZEES
financial position comprise: &
Group
&M
2010 2009
—E-%F “EENF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFIT BT T
Raw materials FE 191,756 86,435
Work in progress A m 18,664 14,805
Finished goods SR MR 92,254 72,917
Inventories in transit EREmR = 498
Packing materials BER 9,013 8,558
Spare parts B 615 518
312,302 183,731
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) HERABIHZHFESEIN

recognised as an expense is as follows: mF :
2010 2009
—E-%F —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFIT BEFT
Carrying amount of inventories sold €HF & ~ BEEHE 1,745,652 1,658,449
Write-down of inventories FERE 253 1,385
1,745,905 1,659,834




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

25. Debtors, Deposits and 25. FEUTARTR - &R TE
Prepayments EY
All of the debtors, deposits and prepayments are FIERKER - HEeRTANTYESE
expected to be recovered within one year. —FRkE -
Group Company
AEH EAT

2010 2009 2009
—E-TF ks —EThF
HK$’000 WEELENVON HK$°000 WX
ENTT i E%5TT AR

Total trade debtors EWE SR ERE 130,800 137,797 = =
Less: Allowance for doubtful & ;- REZARE
debts (note 25(b)) (Kt 25(b)) (1,884) (1,902) - -

128,916 135,895 - =

Other debtors, deposits HMEWRERR - 2e Rk

and prepayments TR 58,214 75,715 850 935
Current portion of leasehold A& ti#h — FEIM R
land (note 18) (Ktat 18) 2,461 2,990 - -
189,591 214,600 850 935
(a) Aging Analysis (@) FREEDH
The aging of trade debtors (net of allowance for FEWESEREF (KR RIEREERE)
doubtful debts) as of the end of the reporting REAR BRSO HUT -

period is as follows:

Group Company
s 1L F248)

2010 2009 2009
—E—TF ks —EThF
HK$’000 [WEELEXVON HK$°000 WX
EBNTT BRia E%5TT AR

0 — 3 months EZ={@A 128,147 135,049 - —
4 — 6 months ISP (P 769 846 - -
Total trade debtors FEWE 2 BR A TR 128,916 135,895 - -
The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 5(a). NREBZEEBREZTEHRNH =

5(a) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&RzRMIzE

25. Debtors, Deposits and 25. FEUTARTR - &R TE

Prepayments (continved) Rz

(b) Impairment of Trade Debtors (b) FEREBESRRZBESE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are EBREZERRVREESE  —K
recorded using an allowance account unless the SEBRIFIREMBLE - K
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount ERAEESEITRENHE Y
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is o EERT  BEBEER
written off against trade debtors directly (see note SEHEDTRERE ZERF(RH
2(p)(i)). FZ2(p)() °
The movements in the allowance for doubtful AEGESERERBEBBARI
debts during the year, including both specific and D RIZREFESEHANT -

collective loss components, are as follows:

Group Company
AEE EAT

2010 2009 2009
—g-zx ELIFE: —2EhE
HK$°000 HK$'000 Fzli{ololo) HK$°000
#err iasdl =t ks

At beginning of year F (1,902) (1,828) - =
Impairment loss i

recognised HEEE (297) (9,152) = =
Reversal of impairment iz

loss RIEEE 45 25 - —
Uncollectible amounts ik

written off ek 295 8,883 - —
Exchange adjustments PE 5 A% (25) 170 - —
At end of year FR (1,884) (1,902) - =
At 30 June 2010, specific allowance for doubtful R=2-2F~A=t1A8H"
debt amounted to HK$1,884,000 (2009: BERRRBESERLASE
HK$1,902,000). 1,884,000 T(ZZEZNF : B

1,902,000 7t) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RFRMzE

25. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (continued)

(c) Trade Debtors that are not Impaired
The aging analysis of trade debtors that are

neither individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired are as follows:

—F-FF
HK$’000
EETFT

25. FEWBRAR « I RFA

)

(c) RAEMFEREGEZERES
AR

TR R EmIRAE
HEEENERE SRR IRE

DMAMT :
Group Company
AEE AATF

2010 2009 2009
—EENE —EEAF

2L X HKS’000 HK$’000

BT Wl a EMF

Neither past due nor REBR TERE
impaired i) 125,481 132,496 - =
Past due for less than BEDR
3 months ={@A 3,435 3,399 = =
128,916 135,895 — —

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the
Company held the following collaterals over these

balances:

—g-2f
HK$’000
BT

Properties LY

5K 5 R AR B4 2 PR
% HRIEHRAEERERE S
BES -

3B BB A 1 R B 2 4 2 FE AR
R BREZBEAEEBRFE
MEENEF - BUEER B
REFEERIB|EANNRE
EEBMEETNELNAFL
B FRABLEEXNKEAATR
HE - AREBERARQBHMU L
FEW B 2 BR RS R 5 A K 7
muT

Group Company
FEE EAT

2010 2009 2009
—BBnE =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

srrr WTaTl SETFT

= 355
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA75:RFRMzE

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents 26. IR& RIS %
Group Company
*%E F45

2010 2009 2009
=tk — RN F —E2ThEF
CIEHN  HK$'000 BGLERIN  HK$'000
BETFT LA ZETFT BGLE R

Cash on hand and at banks E£RIRTHER 356,105 300,388 16,923 32,674
Time deposits EHFR 212,684 339,456 134,080 250,958

568,789 639,844 151,003 283,632

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2010 which are R-ZZE—ZFFXRA=+H FLEERE
denominated in currencies other than the functional RIBNYEELEABENNRERRS
currencies of the Group entities are mainly denominated EHFERUETAEN -
in USD.
Cash at banks carries interest at floating rates based on RITERREBEZEARITERARTE
daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are matured ZEHRZEZHREFE c EHERIR=
within three months and earn interest at the respective BAREE WIS 2EHEFERAE
short term deposit rates. BRERF 2 o
Y
27. Bank Loans 27. sRITER
Group Company
FEH EAT

2010 2009 2010 2009
Effective [t EE Pl —szhs [ B I N —s2hE
interest rate HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Lk #rrr Wiaidl 2:tz BELEEs

Unsecured bank 3K #

loans IRITER 0.65% — 5.36% 65,459 40,500 2,500 12,500
The borrowings are repayable on demand or within one ERFERERI-—FREE -
year.
The Group’s bank loans are denominated in HK$ and FEAEBZRITERENBERAR

RMB. HEBEE{ o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

27.

28.

Bank Loans (continued) 27.

The Group’s bank loans carry variable rate of interest
ranging from Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR)
plus 0.43% to RMB basic rate plus 0.5% (2009: HIBOR
plus 0.43% to 1.00%) per annum.

Creditors, Deposits Received 28.
and Accruals

The aging analysis of trade creditors is as follows:

RITER @

AEEZRITERBIFBANEER » &
NFEEBRITEAZIFREMERR0.43%
ZHEARBITARBERFEMO.5%
(Z2ZhF  BEBRTEAEFEMSE
FIF0.43% E1.0%)5T 8

REGHEREK - EMIRS R
A

s H

BNEZHRREDHAOT :

Group Company
AKRE AATF

2010
—g-%5
HK$°000
BB

—EENE

2009
—EEAF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
gwTx Wolte ENTT

2009

0 - 3 months EE={EA 195,289 179,619 = =
4 - 6 months 75 1E8 A 833 1,496 - =
Over 6 months ~EB U E 1,375 1,154 = =
Total trade creditors ENE SRR ELE 197,497 182,269 = =

Other creditors, deposits Hib SRR ~ B
received and accruals e RETER 127,198 111,814 15,054 13,876
324,695 294,083 15,054 13,876

Creditors, deposit received and accruals which are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities are mainly denominated
in USD.

FAEEEERMBNEEEREMD
EARMR CHEZEEREAERIER
LARTRELN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&RzRMIzE

29. Other Current Liabilities 20 HihGZEHaE
Group Company
AEE *45

2010 2009 2009
—E-TF ks —EThF
HK$’000 WEELENVON HK$’000 WX
EETE BRciaecl Z7T7T Biaid

Amounts due to associates FE{TEEE A RIFIE - 23,093 - —
Employee benefit EERF

obligations aE 6,144 6,052 - =
Obligations under finance  BIEHEEH

leases =t 244 109 - =

6,388 29,254 - —
At 30 June 2009, the amounts due to associates were RZEEAFRA=+TH ERNBEEA
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. AREARE BIKHERERERDE
EiE o

The employee benefit obligations represent provision of EEBANEBATEFHRERE -

unclaimed annual leaves.

30. Other Non-current Liabilities 30. HibIEFRBEE
Group Company
Pl PN

2010 2009 2009
—g-ss ELTIE —2ThE
HK$’000 HK$’000 LY HK$'000
prrr Wiaad %77 Wi

Obligations under finance  BEHEEM

leases payable =L
— After one year but — —F%2

within two years MEREE 232 109 - =
— After two years but — MERE

within five years EFEREE 395 200 - =

627 309 - -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RFRMzE

31. Share Capital

(a)

(b)

Authorised and issued share capital

31. k&

(a)

Number of shares

EERBETRE

Nominal value

BiHEE BB EE
000 HK$’000
FR BT T
Authorised: EERE
At 30 June 2009 and at REZZBBEAFAA=Z+
30 June 2010, ordinary shares AR=—ZE—FFKA
of HK$1 each =t+H8 SRZEBER
BT 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHERE :
At 30 June 2009 and at REZBEAFAAZT
30 June 2010, ordinary shares AR=ZE—ZFXA
of HK$1 each =tH8 SRZEBER
BT 243,354 243,354

At 30 June 2010, there were 1,393,000 (2009:
1,393,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by
the Group to reserve for the purpose of satisfying
the exercise of share options granted under the
Group’s share option scheme.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

(b)

RZEBE-ZFEFEXA=+H' X
£ E T 8 A 1,393,000 1% I E IR
(2009 % : 1,393,000 %) » LLi®
EBRFEEREEZRDAE
2T FARERBHTEZ
& o

BEXxEE

FEBEREANEIRERRE
RIEEBEENSESE Ml
BABRREHREERRBEED
BHEHREE  UEABKFEES
EmRBREEE  URBRES
BENBERA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&RzRMIzE

31. Share Capital (continueq) 31. X @

(b) Capital management (continued) (b) EBEXRETHE(E)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its equity-debt ratio and cashflow
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines equity-debt ratio as
the ratio of the equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company to net debt. Net debt comprises

total borrowing less cash and short term funds.

The equity-debt ratios at 30 June 2010 and 2009

FEBEBRERHEREEBR
Mgk EE  LERSRRE
BIERT TREFE2ESEEK
FHRHEFNERNRRETRONES
RRE2EBIEFE - LEEL
BRENSCHERRBELR
o

FEBUEXERBLER - BRER
BERREZRERNYBEE ERE
FREXEREARB - ER
b AEEKEREELRRE
RANTRREGEREFAE
MR- FEEEEAERRE
REREHES -

R-ZBEZAR-Z-ZF XA

FER MIE(EB)BRLIT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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are as follows: =tBEZzEXEBRENT:
Group Company
FEE EAT

2010 2009 2009
%55 EISEN-% %5 ELLIE:
HK$°000 HK$'000 GLEKIL HK$’000
et iaedl 2%77 ks

Bank loans repayable —FRER
within 1 year HERITE R 65,459 40,500 2,500 12,500
Less: Cash and cash B BEER
equivalents REEHE (568,789)  (639,844)  (151,003) (283,632)
Net liquid funds FRBES (503,330)  (599,344)  (148,503) (271,132)
Equity attributable to /NS
shareholders of the PR R AEML
Company % 1,388,236 1,296,248 1,084,451 1,120,560

Equity-debt ratio BEREELE 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0




32. Equity Settled Share-based

Transactions

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May
2003 and amended and approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting on 18 April 2006
(“Date of Approval”’). The amendments to the rules of
the Share Option Scheme on the Date of Approval by
the shareholders was to, among others, allow grant
of options over newly issued shares and/or transfer of
existing shares by the Trust of the Company and to align
the rules under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
the employees and directors of the Group and the
employees of associated companies (“Eligible Employee”)
and to allow them to participate in the growth of the
Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or
transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the Date of Approval of the Share Option
Scheme. The maximum entitlement for any Eligible
Employee in respect of the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to
be granted in any 12 months period does not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share
option will be determined by the directors upon the grant
of share option. It will not be less than the greatest of (a)
the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such a share option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the day of offer of such a share option, which must be a
business day; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFZiRFRMiEE

32. %}1&16}7%&&%%%23?

AAmzERE ([ BRESTS DR
—EE=FHEA-TZHEREHMER
RZZEZERFNATNB(HUEBED
RIRRER RS D ERRIESE - B
#EBHE > MIBREERAZZIERE
FTEERRZME  (HPERE) EHR
HERAABDHHITROR,HEBH
ERERRERDZERE  URRE
FHRBIE 17 EERBELSET o

ZBERETHSEHRERRN ZEEM
BEBURBERAZ2RBRE(EERE
8)) ERIVSHEAQFZERE -

REBRESETFREZMEERE
EITER ARTR HEBHETE
BEoROBAH > EHTESHREBRES
BMERHAQATCRITROVEHEZ
10% o AR+ =@ B BEEME &%
EERTHEREREFRE ZEBRE
ZEBRITRETFRITROZAE  BS
THREBEBEBITRMZ1% -

RATEEARBRE  SRRORBEH
EEENRERER  BRETIR
(UABREERE) (BERLZBREZ
AR AEEXABIMzE A RERR
BR2BREROFHIERTE: o) RHEZ
BREER(ZAREXR)BXIzE
AHRERFTBETZERROUTER ()
BREE -

HMIE(ERB)BRLTF E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5:RzRMzE

32. Equity Settled Share-based 32. U BEREEZR
Transactions (continued) 21 ()
A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on HIRHBHEF=—+—BR  EHRHG
acceptance of the share option within 21 days inclusive BREAZFREBE 1T

of, and from the date of making such offer.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a BRESEENHTE H-_ZEZ=F
period of 10 years commencing on 23 May 2003. FRAZt+=H®BEM -

As at 1 July 2009, there were no outstanding option RZBEENFLHE—H  REBRES
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme. In addition, no BEERTHEZBRE - LI RER

option was granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme WEREERETERLERE -
during the year.

No other option was vested, exercised, lapsed or REAFEER  UTEHEMBREERRS
cancelled during the year. B~ 47~ REAREUHE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&:RzRMIzE

2.
33. Reserves 33. fitfE
(a) Company (@) &EATF
Investment Share
Share  revaluation option General Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total

RititE REEGGE BRERS -RiEE  hERE ]
HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFr BRIt B¥Tn BT BT BNiaed

At 1 July 2008 ZEEN\ELA-A 429,423 182 927 50,000 456,768 937,300
Change in fair value of REENSEEEL
available-for-sale financial assets ~ AABEEE - (103) - - - (103)
Released on lapse of share options ~ BREA &R = = (927) - 2 -
Loss for the year REEEE = = = - (23,488) (23,488)
2007/08 final dividend paid H-E%t/ZNE
AERE - - - - (21,902) (21,902)
Current year interim ovidend paid ~~ HEEERHRE - - = = (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2009 —EEAERAZTE 429,423 79 = 50,000 397,704 877,206
At 1 July 2009 ZEERELA-A 429,423 79 - 50,000 397,704 877,206
Change in fair value of REENSEEEL
avalable-for-sale financial assets AR EEZE = 130 = = = 130
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal  WETHHENHBEER
of avallable-for-sale financial B)\BR
assets - (192) - - - (192)
Profit for the year REERA = - - - 456 456
2008/09 final dividend paid f=2EN/EhE
FERE - - - - (21,902) (21,902)
Current year interim dvidend paid ~~ HEEERHRE - - = = (14,601) (14,601)

At 30 June 2010 —%-%5xA=tH 429,423 17 S 50,000 361,657 841,097
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

33. Reserves (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HIE(F8)EBRLT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Sections 48B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus
reserve and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises, foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China are required
to transfer at least 10% of their profit after
taxation, as determined under accounting
principles generally accepted in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC GAAP”)
to the statutory surplus reserve until the
balance of the reserve is equal to 50% of
their registered capital.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in note 2(l).

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve represents the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the
Company acquired for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options
granted under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme. The application of the ESOP
reserve is governed by Sections 49H of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

33. f#E =)

(b) fEEZHERAR :

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Btram
ROBEERZERANZE
B T HAI) 3 488 AT
B

BRHEEREEERHRD
BEREERRE °

RB(EESFHE) &
HEREMIEFRERE
HAB(PEARLNE
BERFEADBTDLR10%
HBRRRBENBRAEER
B EEZRHENE
BRESNEMEARN50%
Rk e

REEMLHE

REEMHEERREER
AEFAENHHENINE
BEZORBEEENR
sHIRER 0 MR B MY R 2()
&z astBERMmERE

ETBRELREE

ETERELS=FHRER
RRERERET > WT
ERREMZRBRELSR
BAXRRACSBTRG Z
BERE - 2RBEZEA
2 &5 8(2 AR HI)EE 49H
1RFTEEE ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFSRRMIsE

33. Reserves (continuea)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves: (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the
fair value of equity settled share based
transactions and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies in note 2(s)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(d).

General reserve

The general reserve has been set up by
transfer of revenue reserve in previous
years according to resolutions of the Board
of directors.

Revenue reserve

The distributable reserve of the Company at
30 June 2010 amounted to HK$361,657,000
(2009: HK$397,704,000). After the end of
the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary
share (2009: HK$0.09 per ordinary share),
amounting to HK$24,335,000 (2009:
HK$21,902,000). The dividend has not
been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period.

33. f#E =)

(b) fEBZHERAR :

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

RBIR R

BRERMBEERTET
ZEREAREE 2
BIRBIEE2(s)(il) T 2
BERTREMEE

ER

ERRHEEERITESN
EBHMBHREMELEZ
BN EE - ZRBREN
H2O) E ST HEM
BRI o

— R

—RFBEREZSRUA
FERBZNRZFER
A ©

W (i

ARABR=ZE—FFEANA
=tHEzZWRREABYE
361,657,000 L(= & &
L& B #397,704,000
) REIRE EEE
BRKEZRAREASR
T@ERBEIOT(ZE
ZhE BREBERB
¥0.097w) BEeXEAB
#024,335,000 (= B &
hL 8 #21,902,000
J0) ° 5% BRI AR R E R
BRABE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA7&RzRMzE

34. Capital Commitments 34. %iEIEH
(a)  The Group had the following commitments not (a) AEBEEHREUTHEEEREBR
provided for in the financial statements at the end RARTEBARERER A

of the reporting period:

Group

FEE
2010 2009
—2-%% —BENEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
ERFiT BETFT

Authorised capital expenditure  B#tETSFT Y 2B R
and contracted for B 19,552 30,480

Authorised capital expenditure  B#LEBRETHZE R

but not contracted for 553 5,307 7,271
(b) At 30 June 2010, the Group had several by R-ZZE—ZFFA~A=+H XK
non-cancelable purchase orders for certain SEEMERTT ZE KT T
materials with its suppliers with an amount of HHRBIE SBEABHE
HK$328,280,000 (2009: HK$79,808,000). 328,280,000 T (=ZEZ N, : B

79,808,000 7T) °

35. Contingent Liabilities 35. HAEE
The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”) EBRRBR(BBE M- =
has initiated a tax audit on certain group companies FR-ZBE=Z /ENFZERBFEE
and the Group had paid a total of HK$3,608,000 to the HAREEIDME QR HREETE
IRD under the protective assessments against certain (R D) ERBRERERERU
subsidiaries for the years of assessment 2002/03 and Bl AEERFEABEBEHMTEE
2003/04 pending the outcome of the tax audit. 3,608,000 7T °
After taking professional advice from its tax adviser, REEHBEBEENEEZRUE  £E
the Group submitted a settlement proposal for the BE_Z—ZF_A2Z2X7 —ENHEA
consideration by the IRD in February 2010. Appropriate RUEBBER - AEBOIRMBHE -
provision has been made in the financial statements for EBE_Z-ZTEAA=+HEENY
the year ended 30 June 2010 for the estimated additional BHRRABRMGTHENBIEEEEIRE

tax liabilities based on the proposal. SR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF&:RzRMIzE

36. Related Party Transactions 36. AFAEALTHIR S

The Group had the following material transactions with its TEEREBEUTEENEBEAT
related parties during the year: MRS :

2010 2009

—T-TF —Z2ENF

Related party Nature of transactions Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
AEEAT XHME it BETFIT BT

Jointly controlled entity Purchases of small package oil
HEZHERE BENEERH (i) 6,684 3,259

Sales of aroma oil
BRoRiEE (ii) 28,795 77,414

Bottling and refinery income for
small package oil

MK RMERERBREA (i) 40,414 33,174

Management fee income
EEBWA (iii) 2,000 2,000

Royalties received for the use
of trademarks

EEEAREERA (iv) 11,919 13,716

Sales of cleaning products

FEF MIE(EB)BRLIT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

BEAMEE (v) 1,914 5,108
GOMC/GGMC Management fee expenses
EEELXH (vi) 4,890 3,537
Other related party transactions are also disclosed in MIEE11 22 RO EHBEHMBEREE
notes 11, 22, and 29. ALTHRS ©
Notes: BtaE -
(i) Purchases of small package oil from a jointly controlled (i) BE/NEBERHEUAXERMFEE 6
entity were at cost plus a percentage of profit mark-up. REEET
iy
(i) Sales of aroma oil to a jointly controlled entity were (ii) ERHEES SRS EEIRR FB!(W
made with reference to the market price. TISERELT o |‘ |
(iii) Bottling and refinery income for small package oil and (ifi) NEERBERREREAREERSE
management fee income from a jointly controlled entity WA U BB AR AREBATIRMEN
were determined by reference to the cost and the RIEMERE o

amount of services performed by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAF5RRMIsE

36. Related Party Transactions

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) Under the trademark license agreement, the royalties
received from a jointly controlled entity for the use of the
trademarks are calculated based on a percentage, as
may be agreed between the parties from time to time, of
the gross sales value of licensed products sold by jointly
controlled entity within Hong Kong and Macau.

(v) Sales of cleaning products to a jointly controlled entity
were made with reference to the market price.

(vi) A master services agreement (the “Master Services
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company
and GuoLine Group Management Co. Limited (“GGMC”)
together with GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) (collectively
known as the “Service Providers”), subsidiaries of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), on 30
June 2008 for the provision of management services to
the Group by the Service Providers for a term of three
years from 1 July 2008.

In the event that the aggregate service fees payable by
the Company to the Service Providers and any of the
subsidiaries and associated companies of HLCM for the
provision of similar services, if any, exceeds the annual
cap of HK$13,000,000 during any of the three financial
years ended/ending 30 June 2009, 30 June 2010 and
30 June 2011, the Company would be required to re-
comply with the Listing Rules as appropriate.

Details of the Master Services Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement dated 4 July 2008.

37. Ultimate Holding Company

The directors consider the ultimate holding company as
at 30 June 2010 to be Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia.

36. EEEEATHZ S @)

ByaE - ()

vy PEEEAREERARRERSEER
BB UEEEAEEEBRIRMH
ETABERERNAHESRECT
HORBW - LEFTEDRAHEES
BRTEMEX -

v) BERAREER - ARERERR
RIS ERET -

(i) RZEBEENFEANA=1+H ' X2
7 B = XHong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (THLCM ) B9t &
A®] > Guoline Group Management
Co. Limited ([GGMC]) & GOMC
Limited ((GOMC]) (TBR # 1 FE
Bl ARBHEER-ZZENFL
B—BERAXAEERERB=F2%
BERTS - 7T — BRI 1 ([ AR5
EANK

WERQAARBEZE-ZETNEAA
=+B-ZZ-ZFXA=T+HREZ=
E——FXRA=Z+THL=ANBEE
WEM—F BRERERREM
HLCM KB /B8 2 7] & B & 0 B Rk 281
RIS M S| 2 R E RS & AEiB
FE £ [R%E % 13,000,0007T © AN 2D
AREEHETHELTRE -

FERBHRABHRER-ZZNEF
TAMENRER -

37. RARER AT

EEERAN-E-ZFRA=THE
#1227 AHong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad @ —RBR B R ET
ML 2 AT °



SUBSIDIARIES B2 5]

At 30 June 2010
R2010%6 530H

The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at

30 June 2010:

Issued and fully
paid up capital

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

REB-ZFA=+HEZTEMNBRAARE

Effective

percentage of

Name of company EBTR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
ASEH BRZBF A RS R RERFE S TEXH Hat
Group Company
A5E  F4iq
Asian Dragon Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Licensee of factory
B2 T 58 canteen
IBREHREE
Bio Trading Limited US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Bulk trading of edible oils
1ET KBERRRE ARRAHES
Gladko Industries Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
ESEXERAR B2 BB REER
Global Flour Trader Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of flour products
BRERESERLA 10,000 T 58 BHERES
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare HK$21,000,000 People’s Republic of 100 — Manufacturing and a
Products Limited A% 21,000,000 7T China trading of cleaning
BMNEIEEZRRERAR REARLNE products
HEREZEMES
Hong Kong Flourtech Limited HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of flour and
BEARERAT E# 10000007 EiE LRt
BHEFREMNKE
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 — Trading of bran, provision
EBERHERAT HK$100,000 &5 of trucks rental service
Deferred shares and investment
HK$10,000,000 holding
EEk ERES  EEHERR
7% 100,000 T B2R
ELER

71 10,000,000 7T

HMIE(ERB)BRLTF a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES B 25

At 30 June 2010
R20104¥6 530H

Place of

Issued and fully incorporation/ Effective
paid up capital  establishment percentage of
Name of company EBTR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AT EH BEZRAE MR TS RERFE S TEEH His
Group Company
rE5E  Z4q
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$5,000,000 People’s Republic of 100 — Manufacturing and a
Company Limited 5,000,000 €T China trading of flour
L& mEIEEHERAR REARLNE products
BHEREERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food Company US$10,000,000 People’s Republic of 100 — Manufacturing and a
Limited 10,000,000 % T China trading of flour
IHRIERRERAR REARLNE products
BHEREERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited 127 Hong Kong REERR
REERRES/
E5#
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of cleaning
Laboratories (Hong Kong) IO T & products
Company Limited BREMES
HIEEREENE(EB)ERAR
Lam Soon Edible Oils Company US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Limited ES KEERREE REER
Lam Soon Food Industries (BVI) HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Limited B 118084150 HEBABRES REZR
Lam Soon Food Industries Limited Ordinary shares Bermuda/ 100 100  Investment holding
HK83,228,315 Hong Kong REZER
Convertible BRE/&S

preference shares

HK$25,000,000
HER

B33 228 315 7T

TRRE LR

7tk 25,000,000 7T



SUBSIDIARIES B2 5]

At 30 June 2010
R20104¥6 530H

Place of

Issued and fully incorporation/ Effective
paid up capital  establishment percentage of
Name of company EBTR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
A& BRZBF AR EE A RERFE A TEEH Kt
Group Company
15E  F4d
Lam Soon Food Supply Company Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 — Provision of warehousing
Limited HK$1,000 b2 and logistics services
HIERREEERAR Deferred shares AL BUITIRK
HK$500,000
EEBR
1,000
% 500,000 7T
Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) MOP$25,000 Macau 100 — Trading of flour, oil and
Company Limited BF9#E 25 000 7T ekl cleaning products
BIERAEECRM)ARAT iy RAMREZER
g5
Lam Soon International Limited US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
EV REEBRES REZR
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited BT 5B REEZER
HIE(EE)IEERLA
Lam Soon Realty Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Property holding
BIEERRASE BE2T Bi# ESEL]
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food Company US$5,113,100 People’s Republic of 100 — Manufacturing and a
Limited 5,113,100 &7 China trading of flour
BIE(LR)RRERAR mEARKAE products
AREREERES
Lam Soon Silos Investments Limited ~ HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
BEREREBRAT BT B RERES

HMIE(ERB)BRLTF E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
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SUBSIDIARIES KfiEB25]

At 30 June 2010
R2010F6530H

Place of

Issued and fully  incorporation/

Effective

paid up capital  establishment percentage of
Name of company EETR and operation equity holding Principal activity
A& BRZBE MR TS RERFE A TEEH
Group Company
155 Fig
Lam Soon Systems Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Provision of internet
HIERAFRA BT EE marketing services
RUETHARS
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands 100 — Trademark holding
PEY RRHE BERE
LS Golden Qils & Fats Limited ‘A’ ordinary shares  British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
HK$185,000,000 XBAFZES REZR
‘B’ ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
‘C’ ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000
[ATEBR
7% 185,000,000 7T
[BIERER
79,900,000 T
[CIEER
75,100,000 7T
Richly Choice Development (PTC) US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100 Provision of trustee
Limited 1553 EBEARHE services
REETERE
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 People’s Republic of 100 — Manufacturing and
Company Limited 27,500,000 % 7T China trading of flour
ENRIEERERAT REARLNE products
BHEREERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 People’s Republic of 100 — Provision of silo facilities  a
Company Limited 9,500,000 %t China RUBRRE
BNEBERAERAR REARLNE



SUBSIDIARIES HfiBAE]

At 30 June 2010
R2010F6 530 H

Issued and fully

Place of
incorporation/

Effective

paid up capital  establishment percentage of
Name of company EETR and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
A& BRZBE ARSI REFEFT AL TEER H#
Group Company
r5E  x4g
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils US$12,000,000 People’s Republic of 100 — Manufacturing and a
Company, Limited 12,000,000 T China trading of edible oils
REIEREERAR REARLNE BHEERES
Swamex Food Service Limited HK$400,000 Hong Kong 100 100 Trading of edible oils
HERRERATF 400,000 7T &8 products
RBERES
Notes: BtEt -
a The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign B

companies under PRC Laws.

a ZELREPEARANEERUNZEFI
B

-
n

i

BB HEEM -

FEF MIE(EB)BRLIT E Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A FMFEHE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and AEEBEREVNREENEE EEREE
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company for the last RAEAXATRREEEZHEZMNT

FEHR BEEB)ERAT a Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2010

=

=

—_EFE2-F

five financial years are as follows:

2008 2007 2006
—EEN\F ZZEEtLHFE ZZEARE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
sl b | B EETT BEEET BE¥EET EB¥EHET
Results ES
Turnover B 2,193 2,072 2,578 2,298 2,237
Operating profit before k31
interest, taxation, FMEXZH -
depreciation and Bi1E - IEREHE
amortisation R &R F 185 133 175 171 197
Profit attributable to &
Equity shareholders of FEAR & A
the company 122 79 118 110 103
Assets and liabilities ZEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE 733 634 645 847 869
Net current assets FRBEE 667 674 629 362 258
Non-controlling IR ER
interests (11) (11) (17) (86) (85)
Non-current liabilities FREEE (1) () 2) (11) (16)
Equity attributable to AAT|RE
shareholders of the FE{EHEZE
Company 1,388 1,296 1,255 1,112 1,026




Lam Soon Premier Brands
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